

# Training Guide Creating Custom Event Prints

# **Creating Custom Event Prints**

© Copyright 2013

#### **Table of Contents**

Creating a New Print	1.1
Adding a New Event Print	1.1
Selecting Fields on the Print	1.10
Customizing the Top Notes Section in Print Designer	
Suppressing the Header and/or Top Notes Section	
Remember This:	1.11
Customizing Sub-Event Details on a Print	2.1
Showing/Suppressing Off-Premise Information on a Print	2.1
Customizing Sub-Event Information	2.2
Formatting the Menu Item Details	2.4
Grouping Menu Items on Prints	2.8
Using Item Hiding	2.8
Showing/Suppressing the Ingredients Section	2.9
Showing/Suppressing Event Notes or Sub-Event Comments	
Remember This:	2.12
Customizing Financial Information	21
Modifying Financial Information on Event Prints	31
Showing/Sunnressing the Financial Breakdown	31
Showing/Suppressing the rmanetar breakdown	31
Showing/Suppressing Dining Information Showing/Suppressing Tay/Sarvica Charge Parcentages	3.5
Showing/Suppressing Miscallangous Charges and Discounts	36
Showing/Suppressing Miscenaneous Charges and Discounts	3.6
Showing/Suppressing Deposits Due	37
Remember This:	
Completing Very Cretery Drint	
Completing Your Custom Print	4.1
Customizing the Bottom Notes Section	
Editing the Page Footer of a Print	4.2
Selecting a Language Translation	4.2
Identifying the Print Type for the Program	
Copying an Existing Print	4.5
Creating a Custom Invoice	4.6
Using the Miscellaneous Print Designer	4.7
Remember This:	4.8



# Creating Custom Event Prints

## Unit 1: Creating a New Print

#### **Objectives:**

#### Upon completing this unit, you will be able to:

- Access the Print Designer.
- Add a new event print.
- Choose a print layout.
- Add a new Prospect Manager proposal and a new Guestrooms Manager contract.
- Add a title and logo to your print.
- Edit and format headers and top notes, to include the use of merge fields, in your prints.

#### Adding a New Event Print

#### Concept:

How many different event prints do you need? Of course you need a contract for your customers, but is one enough? Perhaps you also need a unique contract for off-premise parties? Or perhaps certain parties, such as wedding receptions, require their own special terms and conditions and thus should rightfully have their own special contracts? Additionally, you must need an invoice for billing purposes, true? And what about your back-of-house needs? What prints do you require to satisfy those?



Tip: You can also access the Print Designer from the Administration ribbon by clicking Prints > Print Designer > Contract/Invoice at the top left-hand side of the screen. In Caterease, you have a Print Designer that allows you to create as many prints as you want, to serve any purpose you need. The Print Designer offers a wizard-like approach to modify the various event prints (contracts, invoices, proposals, back-of-house prints) you generate from the program.

There are seven attractive templates to choose from (including one dedicated invoice template). You can give these prints their own custom titles, and can format them to suit your individual preferences. The information that appears on each print is entirely up to you!

#### Accessing the Print Designer

- 1. Click the **Setup** sidebar group on the left-hand side of your Caterease screen.
- 2. Click the **Print Designer** button. *Result:* The Print Designer window displays.

📲 📲 🖛 📲 🗶	Print Type	<ul> <li>Tools</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Prev</li> </ul>	iew						😼 Sett	ings
Invoice Contract Contract - Images Kitchen Detail Chefic Conv	fla							Sa	les /	Catering Contract	4
Contract with Staffing	Suppress	Header								Edit Header	•
BEO	Client/Orga	nization		Event Da	te	Telepho	ne	Fax		Event #	
Dual Column Contract	Cellular					Booking	Contact	Site Co	ntact	Guests	
Custom Print	Party Name		1	Sales Rei		Theme		Catego	rv		
Offsite Contract, F00027	Edit Top N	otos 🖉 🗖	Supproce						E CL		orte
New Print	Edic Top N	oles [*	Suppress							low Allergy Ale	aus
					Site Loca	ations					
	Site Name		Si	te Addre	ss			Site Tele	ohone		
	Venue										
	Description	Туре	Start	End	Sen	ving	None	Room		Setup Style	
				Fo	od/Servi	ce Items					$\nabla$
	Format Ti	me:Name			None	N	one	Drice	Obr	Total	
	ronnac m	inc, wante			Home	14	one	Group B	Time	rotur	
								Group by	Time		
	Ingredients										
	Staffing Requirements										
	Comments										
					Note	es					
	Billing Inform	mation									
	Subtotal		Paid		P	ay Meth	bod	(	ard Nur	nber	
	Tax		Balance		C	ard Typ	e	E	xpires		
	Service Cha	rge	None		C	ard Hol	der	1	lone		
	Total Value		None		Si	ignature		1	lone		
				F	ayments	s Made					
	Payment	Pmt Date	Pmt M	ethod	Pmt Expi	res P	mt Appro	val Pmt	Rev Coo	de None	
	Edit Rottom	Notes 👻 🗖	Suppress				G	rint Type	BE	0	
	Lat Dottoin	10000	Juppiess					Typ	DL	0	

Image 1.1: Adding an Event Print

#### Adding a New Print



**Tip:** You can drag and drop titles into different positions on the list, as well. This will affect their positions on your Print menu. 1. Click the **Add Print** button , located at the top left-hand side of the Print Designer window.

**Result:** A confirmation message displays.

- 2. Click **Yes** to confirm your choice. *Result:* The Select Print Layout window displays.
- 3. Click a layout on the left-hand side of the window to select it.
- Click OK. Result: A new print is added, and the <u>Title</u> field is highlighted for you to type in a new print title.
- 5. Type a title for your new print.
- Press [Enter] to save your changes. Note: This is the title that will appear in your Print drop-down menu. In other words, this is the title you will select to generate this print.

#### Print Layouts

In all Print Layouts (except Invoice), you can do the following:

• Customize the header, footer, and top and bottom notes sections, including logo, title, dynamic merge fields, etc.;

- Move or remove specific details within the confines of the print layout, e.g., move "Sales Rep" to another spot, remove pricing information from the menu section, etc.
- Include or suppress details, such as allergy information; site location information; room and time information; menu information; ingredients (*not available in Layout 1*); staffing; sub-event comments; event notes; financial totals; payment details; future deposit schedule; and custom notes, to act as terms and conditions.
- Filter the menu section, allowing you to create a print that only displays food, for example, or that separates appetizers from entrees, etc.

Layout	Description
Layout 1	Shows the details of each sub-event of a party (times, venue, menu, comments/requests, staffing) in separate boxes in the middle of the print. All other layouts group all venues/times together, all menu items together, all staffing together, etc. (Also, this layout does not allow inclusion of ingredients.)
Layout 2	Shows general event information in two columns at the top of the print, as opposed to in rows of boxes (as in all other lay- outs).
Layout 3	Separates menu items for all sub-events into two sides of the print: half on the left and half on the right. Filters can be estab- lished to determine which items appear on which side of the print.
Layout 4	Does <i>not</i> display details on the left and right sides of the print separately.
Layout 5	Separates menu items on the left and right sides of the print, as in Layout 3, above. Also, shows sub-event venues/times on the left and sub-event comments on the right.
Layout 6	Separates menu items on the left and right sides of the print, as in Layout 3, above. Also, shows sub-event venues/times on the left, sub-event comments on the right, bottom notes (terms and conditions) on the bottom left, and financial details on the bottom right.
Invoice Layout 1	Designed in an "invoice" format rather than in a detailed "con- tract" format. Lets you show menu item details in a centered list or include a breakdown of general finances (food totals, beverage totals, etc.), or both. Also, lets you decide whether or not to include items without values from the event.

#### Table 1.1: Print Layouts

#### Changing a Print Title

- 1. Right-click on the print title you would like to change. *Result:* A pop-up window displays.
- 2. Choose Rename Print.
- 3. Type a title for your new print into the highlighted field.
- 4. Press [Enter] to save your changes.

# Adding a New Prospect Manager Proposal (with Prospect Manager Add-In)

Image 1.2: Adding a New Prospect Manager Proposal

f 🗗 🕂 🕂 🔛 🗙	Print Type 🗸 🥕 Tools 🖌 📄 Preview	😼 Settings -
Invoice	Event Manager Print	Sales / Catering
Contract - Images	🥰 Guestrooms Manager Print	Contract
Kitchen Detail	Prospect Manager Proposal	
Chef's Copy		
Contract with Staffing	Suppress Header	Edit Header 💌
BEO	Client/Organization - Event Date Tele	nhone Fax Event#

- 1. Click the **Setup** sidebar on the left-hand side of the screen.
- 2. Click **Print Designer**. **Result:** The Print Designer window opens.
- 3. Click the **Print Type** button at the top of the window.
- Choose Prospect Manager Proposal.
   *Result:* The list of titles in the left-hand pane of the window updates to show all current prints of this type.
- Click the Add Print button , located on the Home ribbon tab at the top of the Caterease screen.
   *Result:* A confirmation message displays.
- 6. Click Yes to confirm your choice. *Result:* A new print title is added to the list in the left-hand pane of the window, with your cursor ready to type a name for the print.
- 7. Type a name for your new print.
- 8. Press the [**Enter**] key.
- 9. Edit the body of the text (including choosing which fields appear where, and editing header, footer, and notes) as described in subsequent sections of this guide).

Adding a New Guestrooms Manager Print (With Guestrooms Manager Add-In)

Image 1.3: Adding a Guestrooms Manager Print

f 🗗 📲 🗧 📕 🗶 🗌	🔁 Print Type 🔹 🎤 Tools 🔹 📄 Preview	😼 Settings 🕶
] Invoice Contract	Event Manager Print	Sales/Catering
Contract - Images Kitchen Detail	Guestrooms Manager Print	Contract
Chef's Copy   Contract with Staffing   Contract - (Narrative)	Suppress Header	Edit Header 💌
BEO	Client/Organization Event Date	Telephone Fax Event #

- 1. Click the **Setup** sidebar on the left-hand side of the screen.
- 2. Click **Print Designer**. **Result:** The Print Designer window opens.
- 3. Click the **Print Type** button at the top of the window.
- 4. Choose **Guestrooms Manager Print**. *Result:* The list of titles in the left-hand pane of the window updates to show all current prints of this type.
- Click the Add Print button , located on the Home ribbon tab at the top of the Caterease screen.

Result: A confirmation message displays.

- Click Yes to confirm your choice.
   *Result:* A new print title is added to the list in the left-hand pane of the window, with your cursor ready to type a name for the print.
- 7. Type a name for your new print.
- 8. Press the [Enter] key.
- 9. Edit the body of the text, including choosing which fields appear where, and editing header, footer, and notes (as described in subsequent sections of this guide).

#### Customizing the Header in Print Designer

#### Concept:

Caterease gives you the unique opportunity to insert a unique header, such as a title or custom logo, into any of your event prints, and to change the material at any time.

#### Image 1.4: Customizing the Header

Header	Arial - 1	L → [A- A-] [8Ξ 3Ξ 83	Tools +	
Paste Undo Clipboard	B I U ♥ ▲ + = = Forma	≡ 💽 💽 斗 A‡	Insert - Scratch Pad Tools	
FLAN	ING + EVENTS		Sales	/Catering Contract
Hyperlink:				Close

#### Editing the Header of a Print

1. In Print Designer, click the Edit Header button (top right-hand side of the screen).

**Result:** The Header window opens.

*Note*: There are three separate panes within the header window. Each pane can be edited by following the steps below.

2. **[Optional]** Stretch or shrink any pane by holding your left mouse button down on the inside frame and dragging left or right.

*Note:* You can also set all three panes to equal widths by clicking the **Tools** button,

located at the top of the window, and choosing Set Equal Widths.

- 3. Click on any pane and type as desired, using the toolbar at the top of the window to format text, to center or right-justify, etc. (See Table 1.2, below.)
- 4. **[Optional]** Insert images (logos, for example) into the header, as described below.
- 5. **[Optional]** Insert merge fields (to dynamically merge information from the event, such as the event number, revision date, etc.), as described below.
- 6. **[Optional]** Click the hyperlink field at the bottom of the header window and enter a URL (web address) to attach to this area of the print.

*Note*: When you e-mail this print, the recipient can click any part of this header and be sent to the designated web address.

Button	Description
Times New Roman	<b>Font Face:</b> Drops down a list of all of your computer's fonts so you can change the highlighted text.
10 -	Font Size: Lets you change the size of the font of the highlighted text.
A-	<b>Increase Font Size</b> : Lets you increase the size of the font size, in one-point increments.

#### **Table 1.2: Font Formatting**



an entire header or even individual sections to all your other Print Designer prints by clicking the down arrow to the right of the Edit Header button on the Print Designer screen and selecting the specific part (Entire Header, Left, Center, or Right) you want to copy.

Button	Description
A-	<b>Decrease Font Size</b> : Lets you decrease the font size, in one-point increments.
0 0 0 -	<b>Bullets:</b> Places bullets before each of the high- lighted lines of text. Each new bullet begins with a hard return or <b>[Enter].</b>
	Numbering: Places numerals in front of text.
12	<b>Bullet Wizard:</b> Lets you choose a different bullet for your list, or a number, or a custom bullet.
В	<b>Bold:</b> Bolds or un-bolds the highlighted text. Bold is enabled if this button is highlighted and/or has a border around it.
Ι	<b>Italic:</b> Italicizes the highlighted text or removes italics. Italics is enabled if this button is highlighted and has a border around it.
U	<b>Underline:</b> Underlines the highlighted text or removes an underline. Underline is enabled if this button is highlighted and has a border around it.
<u>A31</u>	<b>Clear Formatting:</b> Removes any or all of the above three formatting features: bolding, italiciz-ing, and underlining.
<u>A</u> -	Font Color: Lets you change the color of the high-lighted text.
	Left Align: Aligns the paragraph containing the highlighted text (up to the next hard return or [Enter]). Left Align is enabled if this button is highlighted and has a border around it.
III	<b>Center Align:</b> Aligns the paragraph containing the highlighted text (up to the next hard return or <b>[Enter]</b> ). Center Align is enabled if this button is highlighted and has a border around it.
	<b>Right Align:</b> Aligns the paragraph containing the highlighted text (up to the next hard return or <b>[Enter]</b> ). Right Align is enabled if this button is highlighted and has a border around it.
<u>*</u>	<b>Increase Indent:</b> Increases the indentation of the paragraph containing the cursor by .5 inches.
	<b>Decrease Indent:</b> Decreases the indentation of the paragraph containing the cursor by .5 inches.

Button	Description
At	<b>Subscript:</b> Refers to a character that is printed on a lower level than other characters in a line of type; appears smaller and below the baseline.
<b>A</b> ‡	<b>Superscript:</b> Refers to a character that is printed on a higher level than other characters in a line of type; appears larger and above the baseline.

#### Adding an Image/Logo to the Header

A logo is the identifying element for the brand of a company, and is designed to create immediate recognition. Adding your company logo to a print could not be easier!

Image 1.5: Adding an Image/Logo to the Header



- 1. Click on the pane within the header where you would like your image/logo to appear.
- 2. Click the **Insert** button, located at the top of the header window.
- 3. Click the **Image** button.
- 4. Browse to the image you want to insert.
- 5. Double-click the image to insert it into the pane. *Note: Images can be justified (left, center, right), just like text.*

# Fields Explorer x Select Image: Select Account Fields Event Fields Sub-Event Fields Staffing Fields Financial Fields Employee Fields Account User Defined Fields Sub-Event User Defined Fields Sub-Event User Defined Fields Sub-Event User Defined Fields Sub-Event User Defined Fields Special Fields Special Fields Special Fields

#### Inserting Merge Fields Into the Header

Image 1.6: Fields Explorer Window

#### Concept:

Merge fields are dynamic fields that automatically merge specific information from a particular customer or event. For example, you could type the words "Last Revised On:" followed by a merge field that pulls an event's revision date. Then, when you generate that print from any event, the merge field will automatically insert the specific revision date of that particular party. It's a great way to make your various prints look custom-created each time you generate them.

- 1. In Print Designer, click the **Edit Header** button (top right). *Result: The Header window opens.*
- 2. Click into the text block.
- 3. Type any text you want to precede your merge field into the desired pane. *Note:* For example, you may want to identify the merge field for the person reading the print, e.g., "Revised Date," "Party Name," etc.
- 4. Click the **Fields button**, located at the top right of the text window. *Result: The Fields Explorer window opens.*
- 5. Click the plus sign to the left of the group of merge fields you want to access. *Result: The selected group expands, showing all related merge fields.*

*Note:* As an option, click the *Full Expand* button *index*, located at the top of the Fields Explorer window, to expand all categories of merge fields at once. (See Appendix B for a comprehensive list of available merge fields.)

6. Select the field you want to insert, and either double-click it or drag and drop it into the text window.

**Result:** *Double-clicking a merge field inserts it where the cursor currently resides; dragging and dropping a field allows you to place it anywhere.* 

- 7. Continue this process until you have entered all of your desired merge fields.
- 8. Close the window, and then click the **Save** icon on the subsequent screen.

#### **Selecting Fields on the Print**

#### Concept:

The various fields that appear on your event print are under your control; it is totally up to you whether the print layout you've chosen shows fields in boxes at the top of the print or whether the fields appear in columns. Throughout the entire print, various fields can be removed or added to suit your company's preferences.

Image 1.7: Selecting Fields in a Print

0										×
💣 💣 📲 🖛 🔙 🗶	📄 Print Type 🔹 🎤 Tool:	s 🕶 📄 Pi	review						😼 Sett	ings 🕶 🛛 🗔
Invoice Contract Contract - Images Kitchen Detail Chef's Conv	Flave		5 s				Sales	/Cati Con	ering tract	2
Contract with Staffing Contract - (Narrative)	Suppress Header							Edit He	eader	-
BEO	Client/Organization		Event D	ate	Teleph	one	Fax	NE	vent #	V
Dual Column Contract	Cellular				Bookin	g Conta	Address	13	ests	_
Custom Print	Party Name		Sales Re	p	Theme		Address (Extende City, StProv Posta	d)		~
Offsite Contract- E00027	Edit Top Notes 💌 🗆	Suppress	-				Full Address		rgy Al	erts
New Print				SiteL	ocations		Fax			2
	67 M		C2 4 1 1	Site Et	searcons		Cellular			
	Site Name		Site Addr	255			Party Name			
				Ve	nue		Booking Contact			
	Description Type	Start	End	S	Serving	None	Booking Fax		Style	
			F	ood/Se	rvice Item	15	Booking Cell Booking Email			7
	Format Time;Name			Non	e M	Vone	Booking Full Add	ress	otal	
							Site Tel			
				Ingre	edients		Site Cell			V
			Sta	ffing Re	equireme	nts	Site Email Site Full Address			V
				6			Theme			
				Com	iments		Reference		_	
				N	otes		Pay Method			
	Billing Information						Event # PO #			
	Subtotal	Paid			Pay Met	hod	Account #			
	Tax	Balance			Card Ty	pe	Folio # Guests			
	Service Charge	None			Card Ho	lder	Pin Guests		-	
	lotal value	None			Signatur	e	Act Guests			
				Payme	nts Made		Event Date			
	Payment Pmt Date	e Pmt	Method	Pmt Ex	cpires	Pmt Ap	Status Booked		-	
	Edit Bottom Notes 💌 🗖	Suppress	-				Revised Billing Client Billing Address			
Contract 4		Suppress	I Ime a	x Page	Counts		Transidle TO	vone		

- Click the down arrow at the right of a particular field (all fields located throughout the print within the Print Designer window).
   *Result:* A drop-down list of options displays.
- 2. Select a different field from the drop-down list of options. *Note:* Different sections of the various prints offer different field options. For example, each layout has a specific section where sub-event fields (time fields, room or site location preference, etc.) are available.

#### **Customizing the Top Notes Section in Print Designer**

Customizing the Top Notes section of your various prints affords you the powerful opportunity to type any custom text into your event prints, format that text any way you want, and pepper that text with various dynamic merge fields.

- 1. Click the **Edit Top Notes** button (upper left-hand side of the screen). *Result: The Top Notes window opens.*
- 2. Type into the text box as desired, optionally inserting merge fields as described on Page 1.9, above.
- 3. Format the text using the format toolbar located at the top of the notes window (*see Table 1.2 for more information*).

#### Suppressing the Header and/or Top Notes Section

#### Concept:

Choose to suppress various sections of the print by clicking the corresponding checkbox associated with a particular section. To suppress the Header or Top Notes, click the corresponding checkbox, as shown below.

**Image 1.8: Suppressing the Header and Top Notes Sections** 

🕈 🚰 📲 🖛 🚽 🗶	🔄 Print Type 🔹 🥕 Tools 🔹	Preview			😸 Settings
Invoice Contract Contract - Images	flavõu	IS		Sales /	Catering Contract
Kitchen Detail Chef's Copy Contract with Staffing	CATERING + EV	VENTS			dit Header
Contract - (Narrative)	Suppress Header				Cale Freduct
Contract - (Narrative) BEO	Client/Organization	Event Date	Telephone	Fax	Event #
] Contract - (Narrative) ] BEO ] Dual Column Contract	Client/Organization Address	Event Date	Telephone Booking Contact	Fax Site Contact	Event # Guests
Contract - (Narrative) BEO Dual Column Contract Custom Print Contrat en Francais	Client/Organization Address Party Name	Event Date Sales Rep	Telephone Booking Contact Theme	Fax Site Contact Category	Event # Guests
Contract - (Narrative) BEO Dual Column Contract Custom Print Contrat en Francais Offsite Contract- E00027	Client/Organization Address Party Name Edit Top Notes V Su	Event Date	Telephone Booking Contact Theme	Fax Site Contact Category E Sh	Event # Guests

#### **Remember This:**

In this unit, you have learned a few very important concepts about creating a custom event print. Here are some things you might want to jot down in the **Table of Things I Want to Remember** on the last page of this book:

- You can add as many event prints as you want to your Caterease program, giving each one any title you want (Page 1.2).
- You can customize the title that appears at the top of your various prints, including inserting merge fields and formatting the font (Page 1.4).
- You can add your custom logo to your various event prints (Page 1.8).

**Note:** Refer to the next chapter for more information about suppressing or hiding additional sections.

- The fields that appear throughout your event prints are entirely under your control (Page 1.10).
- You can use the dynamic "Top Notes" section of your prints to include any text you want, or even to redesign the print to better suit your preferences (Page 1.11).
- You can suppress certain sections, if desired, by clicking the corresponding Suppress checkbox (Page 1.11).



# Creating Custom Event Prints

# Unit 2: Customizing Sub-Event Details on a Print

#### **Objectives:**

#### Upon completing this unit, you will be able to:

- Include or remove off-premise information, including directions, on an event print.
- Customize sub-event information on prints, including times, setup style, room, etc.
- Choose the appropriate format for your menu items on your various event prints.
- Include or exclude appropriate menu item fields on your prints.
- Effectively hide certain menu items on selected event prints.

#### Showing/Suppressing Off-Premise Information on a Print

[										
	FI-	N/Z	1	ICE				Sa	ies/l	catering
mages		1 V 🔍		כו					(	Contrac
	CAT	ERING	+ E	VENTS						
taffing ative)	Suppr	ess Header							E	dit Header
	Client/Or	ganization		Eve	ent Date	Teler	ohone	Fax		Event #
t	Cellular			1		Book	ing Contact	Site Con	tact	Guests
	Party Nat	me		Sal	es Ren	Then	ne	Categor	v	
7000	parts rep interne category									
0027	Edit Top Notes V Suppress Show Allergy Alert									
	Site Locations									
	Site Nam	e		Site	Address			Site Telep	hone	
	Venue									
	Descripti	on Type		Start F	nd	Serving	None	Room		Setup Style
	Earl/Course hours									
	Food/service items									
	Format	Time;Nam	e		No	ne	None	Price	Qty	Total
	Group By Time									
	Ingredients									
	Staffing Requirements									
	storing requirements									
	Comments									
	commence									
	Notes									
	Billing Inf	ormation	_							
	Subtotal			Paid		Pay M	Pay Method		ard Num	iber
	lax	• 1900 (March 1997)	_	Balance		Card	lype	Đ	Expires	
	Service C	narge		None C			Card Holder		one	
	Total val	ue		None		Signat	ure	IN	one	
					Paym	ents Mad	de			
	Payment Pmt Date Pmt Method Pmt Expires Pmt Approval Pmt Rev Code None								Rev Cod	e None
	rayment									
	Payment		1							

#### Image 2.1: Including Off-Premise Information

#### Concept:

**See Image 2.1** If you do off-premise events, meaning you cater to locations outside of your facility, you can include information about those locations on your various event prints. This information can be as general as the name of the location or as specific as the address, phone number, website, and driving instructions.

Of course, if you do not do off-premise events, this information can (and obviously should!) be suppressed from your prints.

Site Information can be easily suppressed by following the steps below:

1. Click in the section heading labeled "Site Location" on the print and type a heading as desired.

Note: This section heading is not available in Layout 1.

- Verify whether or not the Suppress Site Location checkbox, located to the right of the Site Location section of the print in Print Designer, is checked.
   Note: When these checkboxes contain checks, the corresponding sections of the print will be suppressed (will not appear).
- 3. **[Optional]** Verify whether or not the **Suppress Directions** checkbox (directly below the **Suppress Site Locations** checkbox) is checked.
- 4. Click the down arrow to the right of the first field under the Site Location section of the print, and either select a field to appear or select **None**.
- 5. Repeat the steps above for other fields in the section.

#### **Customizing Sub-Event Information**

#### Concept:

In addition to off-premise details, other specific sub-event information can be included on your event prints, such as the Description of the sub-event ("Breakfast," "Cocktail Reception," "Dinner Buffet"); times; Setup Style; Banquet Room; etc. These details are obviously important, regardless of whether this print is for an offpremise party or an on-premise party.

1. Click in the section heading labeled "Venue" on the print and type a heading as desired.

Note: This section heading is not available in Layout 1.

Verify the Suppress Banquet Rooms checkbox, located to the right of the Venue section of the print, is not checked.

*Note:* When these checkboxes contain checks, the corresponding sections of the print will be suppressed (will not appear).

- 3. **[Optional]** Verify the **Suppress Setup Notes** checkbox (directly below the **Suppress Banquet Rooms** checkbox) is not checked.
- 4. Click the down arrow to the right of the first field under the Venue section of the print, and either select a field to appear or select **None** (*see Table 2.1 for information about these options*).
- 5. Repeat for other fields in the section.

Tip: Chances are you will want to include other subevent fields (times, descriptions, etc.) on your off-premise print as well. See Customizing Sub-Event Information, below, for details.

Field	Description
Description	Prints the Description of each sub-event for the party; e.g., "Din- ner Buffet," "Breakfast," "Meeting," etc.
Туре	Prints the Type of each sub-event, which is a custom quick-pick list you may be using for tracking purposes.
Setup Person	Prints the name of the person responsible for setting up each sub-event.
Delivery Person	Prints the name of the person responsible for delivering items to each sub-event.
Room	Prints the banquet room for each sub-event in the party.
Setup Style	Prints the style each banquet room will be setup in; e.g., "Class-room," "Theater," etc.
Room Category	Prints the category of each banquet room. This is a quick-pick list that is under your control, and might include such categories as "Ballroom," "Meeting Room," etc.
Room Charge	Prints the charge for each banquet room.
Delivery Charge	Prints the delivery charge for each sub-event.
Date	Prints the date of each sub-event. Remember, the date of a sub-event might be different from the general "Event Date."
Guest Count	Prints the guest count for each specific sub-event, which might be different from the guest count of the overall event. <b>Note:</b> This field will default to the <u>Actual</u> guest count, if one exists. If no <u>Actual</u> guest count exists, it will default to the <u>Planned</u> guest count. There is an optional setting in your program's Global Set- tings which will cause it to default to the <u>Guaranteed</u> guest count if that number is higher than the <u>Actual</u> number.
Adults/Children	Prints Adults/Children guest totals for each sub-event, which may be different than those from the overall event. <b>Note:</b> You can rename these fields. Common examples include "Mem- bers/Non-Members or "Vegetarian/Non-Vegetarian."
Sub-Event #	Prints the unique identifying number for each sub-event. <i>Note: These numbers are automatically assigned by the program.</i>
Time Fields	Prints a particular time from each sub-event (e.g., "Start," "End," "Serving," "Bar," etc.). <i>Note:</i> You can rename many of these times.
None	This option leaves a particular area of the print blank. Choose this option if you do not want anything to appear on that area of the print.

Table 2.1: Sub-Event Fields

#### Formatting the Menu Item Details

#### Image 2.2: Formatting Menu Item Details

			Ŷ						
📲 -é -é 🔚 🗶	📄 Print Type 🔹 🎤 Tools	- 📄 Previe	W					😼 Settir	ngs <del>•</del>
Invoice	EL-	100				Sal	es IC	atering	
Contract	IIdvou	JIS					C	ontract	
Kitchen Detail	CATERING + I	EVENTS							
Chef's Copy									
Contract with Staffing	Suppress Header						Ed	it Header	•
Contract - (Narrative) BEO	Client/Organization	Ev	ent Date	Telepi	hone	Fax		Event #	V
Dual Column Contract	Cellular			Booki	ng Contact	Site Cont	tact	Guests	
Custom Print	Party Name	Sa	les Rep	Them	e	Category	,		7
Contrat en Francais	Edit Top Notes 🔻 🗖	Suppress					Sho	w Alleray Aler	ts
New Print			Site	ocations				35	
	City Names	64.	Address	Locations	1	Cite T - I I			-
	Site Name	Site	Address			site relept	ione		-
			1	/enue	1				
	Description Type	Start	End	Serving	None	Room	2	Setup Style	-
	(		Food/S	ervice Iter	ms			5	7
	Format Time;Name		No	ne	None	Price	Qty	Total	
						Group By	Time		
			Ing	redients					V
	Staffing Requirements								7
									V
	Comments								
	Notes								
	Billing Information								
	Subtotal	Paid		Pay Me	thod	Ca	rd Numb	er	
	Tax	Balance		Card Ty	ype	Ex	pires		
	Service Charge	None		Card H	older	No	one		
	Total Value	None	None Signature			No	one		
			Paym	ents Mad	e				
	Payment Pmt Date	Pmt Met	hod Pmt	Expires	Pmt Appro	val Pmt F	lev Code	None	
	Edit Bottom Notes 💌 🗉	Suppress			F	rint Type	BEO		

#### Concept:

One of the most significant ways you can customize an event print is by formatting its menu item details. Consider this: Every menu item in your program has not only a name, but likely also has a more detailed description of the item. For example, a breakfast item might have the name "Harbor Buffet," and also a description that explains the item in more detail: "Includes fluffy scrambled eggs; French toast; bacon and sausage; hashbrown potatoes; fresh fruit; English muffins; assorted pastries; chilled fruit juice; coffee, tea, or milk." You may want to design some prints to include this detailed description of each event's menu items, while other prints only show the names.

In addition, there are other menu item fields you may want to have appear on your various prints. A customer's contract, for example, will typically include prices and totals for each menu item, while a back-of-house (or kitchen) print might only include quantities. These choices are all entirely up to you, and can be made and revised quite easily in your Print Designer.

#### **Customizing the Menu Selection**

- 1. In the Print Designer, locate the Menu section towards the middle of the print. *Note:* In Layouts 1,2, and 4, this section is titled "Food/Service" items, by default. In Layouts 3, 5, and 6, it is called "Food & Beverage" on the left and "Equipment and Miscellaneous" on the right.
- Click the down arrow next to Format in the Food/Service Items section on the Print Designer screen.

Result: A drop-down list of options appears.

- 3. Choose to include the name and description of menu items on the print, just the name or just the description, a picture of the item, or any modifications made to the item (*see Table 2.2 for important information about these options*). *Note: You may also elect to display the quantity of each menu item next to the item name.*
- 4. Click the down arrow to the right of the next field in the Food/Service Items section.
- 5. Choose to include any of the optional information from the drop-down list, or choose **None** if you do not want to have anything appear in this column on the print (*see Table 2.2 for more details*).
- 6. Repeat Steps 3 and 4 for the rest of the fields in the Food/Service Items section.

#### Food/Service Filter

#### Concept:

This option is only available in Layouts 3, 5, and 6, and is generally used to have items with a Type of "Food" or "Beverage" appear on the left-hand side of the print, with other items appearing on the right-hand side of the print. You can use this to design prints that only show certain items, such as "Appetizers," Desserts," or even menu items prepared in a certain area.

1. Click the **Food Service Filter** button , located to the right of the Menu selection, and choose which specific items should appear on this print, using the options outlined below.

#### Image 2.3: Food/Service Filter

Food/Service	Filter		x
Filter Option	ns		
Exclude ]	ltems Without Qເ	uantities	
Туре			
equals	<ul> <li>Food;Beverag</li> </ul>	e;Liquor	<b>•</b>
Category			
equals	<ul> <li>All selected</li> </ul>		-
Prep Area			
equals	<ul> <li>All selected</li> </ul>		-
		OK	<u>C</u> ancel

- **Exclude Items Without Quantities:** This checkbox at the top of the window causes this print to ignore any menu items in an event that do not have quantities associated with them.
- **Type**: Choose (optionally) to only include items with a certain Type or Types ("Food," "Beverage," "Liquor," etc.) or only items that do *not* have a certain Type or Types (using the "Not Equals" comparison).
- **Category**: Choose (optionally) to only include items with a certain Category or Categories, or only items that do *not* have a certain Category or Categories. *Note: This custom quick-pick list can be used to separate "Appetizers" from "Entrees" or "Desserts" or separate "Beer" and "Wine" from "Liquor," etc.*
- **Prep Area**: Choose (optionally) to only include items with a certain Prep Area or Prep Areas, or only items that do *not* have a certain Prep Area or Prep Areas. *Note:* This is also a custom quick-pick list and is used to identify the person or persons responsible for preparing the item.
- 2. When finished, click **OK**.

Field	Description
Name	Prints the name of each item, in 10-point Times New Roman font.
Name Only (w/ Qty)	This item, if checked, prints the Name, as described above, and includes the quantity of each item in parentheses.
Description	This item, if checked, prints the Description of each menu item as you have chosen to format it. The first words of the descrip- tion are usually the name of the item, formatted as desired (bold font, colored text, etc.). <b>Note:</b> This is the standard preference for customer prints.

#### Table 2.2: Food/Service Items Fields

Table 2.2:	<b>Food/Service</b>	Items	<b>Fields</b>
------------	---------------------	-------	---------------

Field	Description
Notes	This item, if checked, prints any detailed notes you might have associated with each menu item. These notes can be used for front-of-house or back-of-house purposes.
Modifications	This item, if checked, allows you to print any on-the fly item changes you have noted in the event using the item's Modifica-tions tab.
Picture	This item, if checked, lets you attach a digital image to any of your menu items so you can show your customers your meal presentations. These images can be displayed on the screen and can also be included in your various event prints.
Bar Code	You can include a bar code as part of any contract. This item, if checked, allows you to print a bar code for any menu/food-service item.
Туре	Shows whether each menu item is a Food, Beverage, Liquor, Equipment, Labor, Room or Other item. <i>Note: Tax and service</i> <i>charge rates for each Type may be different.</i>
Time	Shows an optional time you may have associated with each menu item.
Unit	Prints the unit of purchase for the menu item; e.g., "By Case," "Box," etc.
Prep Area	Indicates the area or personnel responsible for preparing the menu item; e.g., "Kitchen," Bar," Cold Prep."
Category	Prints the Category you have chosen to group each item into, based on a quick-pick list that is under your control; e.g., "AV Equipment," "Linen," "Beer," "Wine," etc.
Account Code	Prints a unique identifying number or code you might have made up for each item. This code is typically used in interfaces with third-party software applications but can be used for in-house tracking as well.
Item ID	Prints a unique identifying number or code (similar to the Account Code, above).
Price	Prints the price your customer will pay for each menu item.
Cost	Prints the cost (to you) for each menu item. <b>Note:</b> Obviously, you would not want this detail to appear on customer prints.
Qty	Prints the quantity of each menu item ordered for the event.
Total	Prints the total price for each item, i.e., the price of the item mul- tiplied by the quantity.
None	Leaves a particular column on the print blank. Choose this option anywhere you do not want a specific detail to appear.

#### **Grouping Menu Items on Prints**

#### Concept:

Perhaps you want all menu items of a certain type (or category, prep area, etc.), to be grouped together on one or more of your event prints. For example, maybe you'd like to have all food items, beverage items, liquor items, etc., separated into groups. Or maybe you'd like to break items down into groups of wine, beer, dinner items, break items, etc. Or, perhaps you want to design a back-of-house print that groups all of your items based on the area in which they are prepared. You can accomplish these things by following the steps below:

1. Under the **Food/Service Items** area of the Print Designer, click the down arrow next to **Group By**.

*Note:* This option is only available on Print Layouts 1, 2, and 4.

Select how you would like menu items grouped on the print — by "Type,"
 "Time," "Category," "Prep Area," or no grouping.
 *Note:* Menu item "Type" is a hard-coded list consisting of the options "Food,"
 "Beverage," "Liquor," "Equipment," "Labor," "Room," and "Other." The other
 two options ("Category" and "Prep Area") are custom quick-pick lists you can
 create through the Setup > Quickpicks menu in the program.

#### **Using Item Hiding**

#### Concept:

Menu item hiding is basically a technique for you to pass notes to your kitchen or other back-of-house staff. For example, imagine a customer requests "no garlic" on a particular menu item. In addition to removing garlic from that item's Description or Ingredients List, you may want to make an obvious note that the chef is sure to see. However, that type of note would probably look tacky on a customer's contract. So, you can create the note as you want — perhaps big, bold letters that say **NO GARLIC** — and then hide it on one print and include it on the other.

#### Setting Up a Print to Hide Items

 On any print in your Print Designer, click the checkbox labeled Allow Food/Service Item Hiding, located midway down the print, on the right. *Result:* Any menu item designated as "hidden" in an event will not appear on this print. *Note:* To see the label of a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it without

clicking.

2. Un-check the box to have hidden items appear on the print.

#### See Image 2.4 Establishing an Item as Hidden in an Event

- 1. Open an event in Event Manager.
- 2. Click the **Sub-Event** button to view the Sub-Event display.
- 3. Right-click the item on the **Food/Service** tab that you want to hide. *Result: A pop-up menu appears.*
- Select Special Editing > Hide/Unhide Items in Print.
   Result: The item becomes italicized to indicate that it will be hidden on any prints that allow item hiding (see Setting Up a Print to Hide Items, above).

Image 2.4: Hiding Menu Items in an Event

Event Manager: F.G.C.	0 = 200301							Lavouts -	Go T	0.	• 6/29/2012	- : 8	Setting	s +   🕞   : 00	-	
Client/Organization Info	ormation								Finan	cia	als	1	<u>.</u>			
Client/Organization Address Telephone Fax Event Sub-Eve	F.G.C.U 1051 FGCU E Ft. Myers, FL (239) 590-66! (239) 590-33: nt	Blvd. L 339 i53 i33	. S. 165				a		Sut Ser Tax Tot Cos	al st f	otal Chg Per Guest			2	1,91 \$30 \$13 2,34 \$	10.5 05.6 33.7 19.9
Description Cocktail R	eception	•	-	Ite	m N	ame	e			_		Price	Otv	Total		1
Date 6/24/2012	E	1		Sn	eet 8	8. Sc	our Meatba	lls				\$40.00	2	80.00	14	-
Start 05:00 PM	100	5		Bre	eade	d M	lushrooms					\$50.00	1	50.00	I۳	1
End 09:00 PM		2	>	De	viled	l Fai	as				1	\$40.00	1	40.00	14	
Room	0			C	×	C	ut	Ctrl+X				\$80.00	2	160.00	14	-
100m	P	2		A	5	0	onv	Ctrl+C			1	\$75.00	1	75.00	14	
		-		C	-			eur e				\$14.95	5	74.75	Y	
	656	61		In	-	Pa	aste	Ctrl+V			0	\$14.95	5	74.75	Y	
		-		D	5	U	Indo	Ctrl+Z				\$2.75	24	66.00	Y	
	1	1		In	-	Pa	age Break (	on prints)				\$3.75	24	90.00	Y	1
	5	目				C	lear Colum	n Sorting								
						Sp	pecial Editi	ng	•	1	Copy (All Items	;)				
						Sc	pelling Too	ls	· D		Copy Selected	tems				
						N	lew Food/S	ervice Window		1	Paste (All Copie	ed Items)				
					1				-	1	Copy To Menu	Manager				-
										1	Hide/Unhide It	em(s) In Pr	ints			1
		A	E	and	/Sec	vice	Staffing	Comments	-	1	Default Descrip	tion From	Name		_	
₩ 4 4 1 of 1 > >>	HH BE	22	-		, serv	VICE	( starting	comments	-	1	Link/Unlink Qty	To Guest	Count			
				*	ŧ 🗩	1	ء 🖸 ک	🥗 🌮 🔍 🗄			Batch Processir			P 😼 🎯	1	

#### Showing/Suppressing the Ingredients Section

#### Concept:

If you are creating a back-of-house print, you may want to include the ingredients for each menu item ordered for the event. Ingredients are set up in the Menu Manager, and (in the Professional version) can be edited on-the-fly from within an event. Of course, you decide whether or not these details appear on each of your custom event prints.



lish menu items to be hidden as a default. For example, you can create a menu called "Modifiers" and populate it with such instructions as "No Onions," "Extra Gravy," etc., each of which is hidden automatically when you pull it into an event.

Tlp: You can estab-

		Ingr	edients		
Name	Qty	Measure	Category	Vendor	Conversion
(15) Turkey Croissant					
Croissant	15	Each	Marcel's Bakery	Marcel Bakery	(15) Each
Turkey (Sliced)	75	Solid Oz	Grand Western M	Grand Western	(4.75) Pounds
Potato chips	15	Each	Sysco	Sysco	(15) Each
(15) Club Croissant					
Croissant	15	Each	Marcel's Bakery	Marcel Bakery	(15) Each
Turkey (Sliced)	45	Solid Oz	Grand Western M	Grand Western	(2.75) Pounds
Ham	45	Solid Oz	Grand Western M	Grand Western	(2.75) Pounds
Bacon Strips	30	Solid Oz	Grand Western M	Grand Western	(2) Pounds
Potato chips	15	Each	Sysco	Sysco	(15) Each
(15) Ham Croissant					
Croissant	15	Each	Marcel's Bakery	Marcel Bakery	(15) Each

**Image 2.5: Ingredients Section of a Print** 

1. Click in the section heading labeled "Ingredients" on the print, and type a heading as desired.

*Note: This section heading is not available in Layout 1.* 

- Click the checkbox labeled Suppress Ingredients, located along the right-hand side of the print.
   Note: To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking.
   Result: With the checkbox checked, this area of the print will be suppressed.
- 3. Un-check the box to have the Ingredients section appear on the print.

#### Showing/Suppressing Event Notes or Sub-Event Comments

See Image 2.6 Concept:

Depending on the print you are creating, you may want it to include the general notes or comments you enter in your Event Manager.



Both of these areas can contain free-flowing text, formatted any way you want. The key difference between these two blocks of text is that the Event Notes (*Image 2.6, below*) belong to the entire party, while each specific sub-event of the party can have its own specific Comments.

**Tip:** These sections will be automatically suppressed if the Comments or Notes section of an event is empty.

		📃 Layouts 🕶	Go To	· 6/11/2012	🔹 🗄 😽 Settings 🕶	局:四局-		
lient/Organizatio	n Information	9	Financia	lls				
Client/Organiza	tion F.G.C.U		Subto	tal		\$1,910.5		
Address	1051 FGCU Blvd. S.		Serv C	hg		\$305.6		
	Ft. Myers, FL 33965		Tax			\$133.7		
Telephone	(239) 590-6653		Total			\$2,349.9		
Fax	(239) 590-3333		Cost	er Guest		56.5		
🗿 Event 🔛 Su General Miscella	b-Event							
Party Name	Prof. Kingsfield's Retirement Party		Event #	E00381				
Sales Rep	John Smith	-	Date	6/11/2012	· ·	- Monday		
Theme	Retirement		Status	Prospective				
Category	Industrial	•	Planned	100	Booked 6/6/20	)12		
Booking Contact	t Krane, Susan	•	Actual	102	Revised 6/7/20	112 (11:11 am)		
Site Contact	Krane, Susan		Guaranteed	90				
Notes iustomer requ	ires special payment terms. See	John Smith for more	details.					

#### Image 2.6: Event Notes Text Block

1. On any print in your Print Designer, click the checkbox labeled **Suppress Comments** or the one labeled **Suppress Event Notes**, located along the right-hand side of the print.

*Note:* To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking. *Result:* With the checkbox checked, this area of the print will be suppressed.

2. Un-check the box to have the Comments or Event Notes section appear on the print.

▲E ₹E 🔚 🗶	Print Ty	pe•	/ Tools	- D P	review						Set	tings	ē.T
e	Client/O	rganiza	ation		Event Da	ate T	elepho	one	Fax		Event #	-	1
act	Cellular					В	ooking	g Contact	Site Con	tact	Guests		
act - Images	Party Na	me			Sales Re	рТ	heme		Categor	y			1
n Detail : Copy	Edit To	p Notes		Suppress						Sł	now Allergy Al	erts	
with Staffing						Site Locat	ions						V
rrative)	Site Nam	1e			Site Addre	55		5	Site Telep	hone			E
ontract						Venue	8						E
contract	Descripti	ion	Tune	Start	End	Sand	ina	None	Room		Setup Style		1
ancais	Descripti	UII	Type	Juli	LIIG	JEIVI	ing	None	Room		Secup Style		
ntract- E00027					Fo	od/Service	e Item	s				Y	V
	Format	Time;	;Name			None	N	lone	Price	Qty	Total		
								1	Group By	Time			
	-					Ingredie	nts						(F
		angitorents											
					Sta	ffing Requi	iremer	nts					E
	Comments											V	
	Comments												
						Notes							V
	Billing In	format	ion	91 mm									
	Subtotal			Paid		Pa	y Meth	hod	Ci	ard Nur	rd Number		E
	Tax			Balance		Ca	rd Typ	be	Ex	pires			10
	Service C	harge		None			Card Holder		None				1
	Total Va	ue		None		Sig	Inatur	e	N	one			E
	Payments Made												
		Payment Pmt Date Pmt Method Pmt Expires Pmt Approval Pmt Rev Cod											
	Payment		Pmt Date	Pm	t Method	Pmt Expire	es F	mt Appro	val Pmt I	Rev Coo	le None		
	Payment	:	Pmt Date	Pm	t Method	Pmt Expire	es F	omt Appro	val Pmt I	Rev Coo	de None		

Image 2.7: Suppress Comments or Suppress Event Notes

#### **Remember This:**

In this unit, you have learned a few very important concepts about modifying an event print. Here are some things you might want to jot down in the **Table of Things I Want to Remember** on the last page of this book:

- You can include off-premise information, such as site location details, on your various event prints (Page 2.1).
- You can customize what sub-event information (banquet room, times, Description, etc.), appears on your prints (Page 2.2).
- Formatting menu items specifically choosing between menu item Name and Description is an effective way to customize your prints (Page 2.4).
- You can hide items on your prints as a way to "pass notes" to your kitchen or other back-of-house staff (Page 2.8).
- You can choose to include or suppress ingredients, event comments, or sub-event notes on your various prints (Page 2.9).



# Creating Custom Event Prints

## Unit 3: Customizing Financial Information

#### Upon completing this unit, you will be able to:

- Modify financial details on a print.
- Show the financial breakdown on a print by menu item type (Food, Beverage, Equipment, etc.).
- Suppress all financial information.
- Show tax and service charge percentages on a print.
- Suppress miscellaneous event charges and discounts.
- Show or suppress payment and deposits-due information.

#### **Modifying Financial Information on Event Prints**

**Image 3.1: Customizing Billing Information** 

j 💼 📲 🗲 🔚 🗙	🔎 Print Type 🔹 🎤 Tools	• Preview				Setting			
Invoice Contract Contract - Images Kitchen Detail Chef's Copy				Sal	es/Cateri Contra	ng rct			
Contract with Staffing	Suppress Header				Edit Heade	r 🔽			
BEO	Client/Organization	Event Date	Telephone	Fax	Event	#			
Dual Column Contract	Address		Booking Contact	Site Conta	ict Guest	s			
Custom Print	Party Name	Sales Rep	Theme	Category					
Contrat en Francais Offsite Contract- E00027	Edit Top Notes 💌 🗹	Suppress			Show Allerg	y Alerts			
Class Example		Site	Locations						
	Site Name		None						
			Venue						
		les a les a	Venue						
	Description Type	Start End	Serving None	Room	Setup St	/le			
		Food/	Service Items			Y			
	Format Name	N	one None	Price	Qty Tot	al			
	_			Group By	None				
		In	gredients						
	Staffing Requirements								
	Comments								
			Natas						
			Notes			_			
	Billing Information	Daid	Day Mathead	Car	al Numeria a /Liala	(an)			
	Tay	Balance	Card Type	Exp	ires	enj			
	Service Charge	None	Card Holder	Nor	ne				
	Total Value None Signature None								
		Payr	ments Made			_			
	Payment Pmt Date	Pmt Method Nor	ne None	None	None				
	The second se								
	Edit Bottom Notes 💌 🔲	Suppress		Print Type	None				

#### Concept:

You will probably want to show financial information on some of your customized event prints (although the choice is yours), but what specific information do you want to see? Just like other areas of the print, you can choose which financial details appear on your various prints — or whether that information appears at all!

- 1. Open the print you want to modify in Print Designer.
- Click the down arrow to the right of any field in the Billing Information section (bottom of the print). (See Table 3.1, below.)
   Note: In all layouts except Layout 6, the boxes on the right-hand side of this section let you include information about a credit card on file for an event.
- 3. **[Optional]** Click one or more of the following checkboxes to the right of the Billing Information section to suppress certain financial details on the print, or choose **None** to leave that field on the print blank.
  - **Suppress Billing Information**: Suppresses the entire "Billing Information" section of the print, shown to the left of this checkbox, so it will not appear.
  - **Suppress Financial Breakdown**: Suppresses a section that shows finances of the event, broken down into totals based on menu item type ("Food," "Beverage," "Liquor," etc.).

*Note:* This section is not displayed on the Print Preview screen in Print Designer.

- Show Tax and Service Charge Percentages: With this box checked, the specific tax, service charge, and gratuity rates will appear next to the appropriate label ("Tax," etc.), on the print, along with the total amount.
- Suppress Miscellaneous Charges/Discounts: Suppresses any money entered into Room Charge or Delivery Charge fields of an event from appearing, as well as any discounts that might be applied to an event. Note: If this box is not checked, these totals will appear in a special box on the print (not shown on the Print Preview screen in Print Designer).
- Suppress Deposit Due Schedule: Suppresses the list of future deposits due for an event.

*Note:* If not checked, the due date and amount of each deposit, along with any associated comment, will be listed (not shown on the Preview screen in Print Designer).

**[Optional]** Click the checkbox to the right of the "Payments Made" section at the bottom of Print Designer to suppress this information from appearing on the print.

*Note:* You can change the heading of this section, as well as click the down arrow next to each field to determine which specific details appear.

Field	Description
Subtotal	Prints the subtotal of the event, before tax and service charge has been added.
Тах	Prints the total tax of the event, and optionally prints the specific tax percentage (see "Showing Tax/Service Charge Percentage."
Service Charge	Prints the total service charge of the event and, as an option, prints the specific service charge percentage (see "Showing Tax/ Service Charge Percentage."
Total Value	Prints the total amount the customer pays, including tax and service charge.
Paid	Prints the total amount paid for the event, and includes all pay- ments received.
Balance	Prints the remaining balance of the event.
Total Cost	Prints the event's total cost to your company (as opposed to the total value the customer pays).
Per Guest	Prints the price per guest for the customer (divides either the subtotal or total by either the Planned, Guaranteed or Actual guest count, depending on your Global Settings).
Next Deposit	Prints the amount of the next deposit that is due for the event.
Due Date	Prints the date on which the next deposit is due.
Pay Method	Prints the method of payment for the event. This detail is entered on the Miscellaneous tab of the Event Manager's General dis- play.
Card Type	Prints the credit card type on file for the event. <i>Note: This is entered in the Credit Card Information tool at the bottom of the Event Manager.</i>
Card Holder	Prints the name of the credit card holder on file for the event. <b>Note:</b> This is entered in the Credit Card Information tool at the bottom of the Event Manager.
Card Number/ Card Number (Hidden)	Prints the last four digits of the credit card number on file for the event. <b>Note:</b> This is entered in the Credit Card Information tool at the bottom of the Event Manager.
Expires	Prints the expiration date of the credit card number on file for the event. <b>Note:</b> This is entered in the Credit Card Information tool at the bottom of the Event Manager.
Approval	Prints the approval number of the credit card number on file for the event. <b>Note:</b> This is entered in the Credit Card Information tool at the bottom of the Event Manager.

Table 3.1: Billing Information Fields

Field	Description
Signature	Offers a blank space for a signature of the credit card holder.
None	This option leaves a particular area of the print blank. Choose this option if you do not want anything to appear on that area of the print.

#### Table 3.1: Billing Information Fields

#### Showing/Suppressing the Financial Breakdown

#### See Image 3.2 Concept

Each of your event prints can optionally show a breakdown of a party's finances — separating money based on the type of items ordered. Categories in this breakdown include Food, Beverage, Liquor, Equipment, Labor, Room, and Other fees. Subtotals, taxes, service charges, and totals will be printed for each category, as well as grand totals for the whole event.

Image 3.2: Financial Breakdown Section of a Print

*Note:* This option is not available on *Print Layout 6.* 

	Food	Beverage	Liquor	Equipment	Labor	Room	Other	Total
Subtotal	\$1,525.50	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$75.00	\$1,725.00	\$600.00	\$0.00	\$3,925.50
Service Charge	\$244.08	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$12.00	\$276.00	\$40.00	\$0.00	\$572.08
Taxes	\$106.79	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.25	\$120.75	\$17.50	\$0.00	\$250.29
Total	\$1,876.37	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$92.25	\$2,121.75	\$657.50	\$0.00	\$4,747.87
						Paid		\$1,500.00
						Balance		\$3,247.87

1. On any print in your Print Designer, verify that there is no check in the checkbox labeled **Suppress Financial Breakdown**, located to the right of the Billing Information section.

Note: To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking.

Click the checkbox to add or remove a check mark.
 *Result:* If the box is checked, the Financial Breakdown section will not print; if there is no check mark, the Financial Section will appear on the print.

#### **Showing/Suppressing Billing Information**

See Image 3.3 Concept:

If you do not want any billing information at all to appear on your print (if, for example, you are creating a back-of-house print for your kitchen or setup staff), you can suppress this entire area.

 On any print in your Print Designer, click the checkbox labeled Suppress Billing Information, located to the right of the Billing Information section. Note: To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking. Result: With the checkbox checked, this area of the print will be suppressed.

- 2. Click the checkboxes labeled **Suppress Financial Breakdown**, **Suppress Miscellaneous Charges/Discounts**, and **Suppress Deposit Due Schedule**.
- 3. Un-check the boxes to have billing information appear on the print.

voice	Client/Organ	ization		Event Date	Telep	hone	Fax		Event #		
ontract	Address				Book	ing Contact	Site Cont	act	Guests		
ontract - Images	Party Name			Sales Rep	Then	Theme C		Category			
tchen Detail nef's Copy	Edit Top Not	es 🔻 🗸	Suppress					Sł	now Allergy Ale	rts	
ontract with Staffing	Site Locations										
ontract - (Narrative)	Site Name		Si	te Address			None			-	
EO	Site radiress None										
ual Column Contract				Venue			1		1		
ontrat en Francais	Description Type Start			End	Serving	None	Room		Setup Style		
Offsite Contract- E00027 Class Example	Food/Service Items 5								7		
	Format Nar		1	None None		Price Qty		Total			
	Group By None										
	Ingredients										
										-	
	Staffing Kequirements										
	Comments									-	
	commune										
	Notes										
	Billing Inform	ation					10				
	Subtotal		Paid		Pay M	ethod	Ca	rd Nur	nber (Hidden)	- V	
	Service Charc	1e	None		Card	ype Iolder	EX No	one		-	
	Total Value	-	None		Signat	ure	No	ne		- V	
				Dev		1-					
				Pay	ments ivid						
	Payment	Pmt Date	Pmt M	ethod No	ne	None	None	\$	None	_	

Image 3.3: Billing Information Section of a Print

#### Showing/Suppressing Tax/Service Charge Percentages

#### See Image 3.4 Concept:

If you're showing billing information on a print, you are likely including totals for the tax and service charge of an event. Perhaps, in addition to these totals, you want to specify what the tax and service charge percentages are.

Image 3.4: Showing Tax/Service Charge Percentages

Subtotal	\$3,925.50 Paid	\$1,500.00	Pay Method	Credit Card	Card Number	**** *** *** 481
Tax (7%)	\$250.29 Balance	\$3,247.87	Card Type	Visa		
Serv Chg (16%	\$572.08		Card Holder	Bill Dvorak	Expires	06/28/20
Total Value	\$4,747.87		Signature			

1. On any print in your Print Designer, click the checkbox labeled **Show Tax and Service Charge Percents**, located to the right of the Billing Information section. *Note:* To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking. *Result:* With the checkbox checked, these percentages will show on the print.

2. Un-check the box if you do not wish to display percentages on the print. *Note: The percentage is displayed only if the same tax rate applies to all seven types of tax rates (food, beverage, liquor, equipment, labor, room, other).* 

#### Showing/Suppressing Miscellaneous Charges and Discounts

#### See Image 3.5 Concept:

**Note:** This option is not available on Print Layout 6, and not available at all in the Express version of the program. While most of the time an item needs to appear on the **Food/Service** tab in Event Manager to affect an event financially, there are a couple of exceptions to this rule, such as the <u>Room Charge</u> and <u>Delivery Charge</u> fields. If you have entered charges into either of these fields, they will affect the total charges of the event and will appear on your print in a special area for miscellaneous charges. Additionally, if you use the **Apply Discounts** tool in Event Manager to discount an event, that information will appear in the same special print area. This area, as with most areas in your event prints, can optionally be suppressed.

Image 3.5: Miscellaneous Charges and Discounts

Subtotal	\$1,760.50 Paid	\$0.00 P	ay Method	Credit Card	Card Number	
Tax	\$123.24 Balance	\$2,165.42 C	ard Type		Expires	
Service Charge	\$281.68	с	ard Holder			
Total Value	\$2,165.42	s	ignature			
Discount per JP		(\$150.00)				

1. On any print in your Print Designer, click the checkbox labeled **Suppress Miscellaneous Charges/Discounts**, located to the right of the Billing Information section.

*Note:* To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking. *Result:* With the checkbox checked, this area of the print will be suppressed.

2. Un-check the box to have Miscellaneous Charges and Discounts appear on the print.

#### Showing/Suppressing Deposits Due

See Image 3.6 Concept:

In addition to general financial information about an event, you may want the schedule of future deposits due for a party to appear on your print. This section will list all deposits that have not yet been paid, i.e., those deposits that are due at some point in the future. Image 3.6: Showing/Suppressing Deposits Due

Deposit Schedule		
Due	Amount Comment	
6/13/2012	\$706.58	

- On any print in your Print Designer, click the checkbox labeled Suppress Deposit Due Schedule, located to the right of the Billing Information section. Note: To identify a checkbox, float your mouse pointer over it prior to clicking. Result: With the checkbox checked, this area of the print will be suppressed.
- 2. Un-check the box to have the Deposit Due section appear on the print.

#### **Showing/Suppressing Payment Information**

#### See Image 3.7 Concept:

Like the Deposits Due section mentioned above, you may want to include information on your print about payments you have already received. Payments differ from deposits in one important way: Payments represent money you have received, whereas deposits are money that will be due at some point in the future.

#### Image 3.7: Payments Made Section of a Print

	Payments Made								
Payment	Date	Method	Expires	Approval	Rev Code				
\$750.00	6/1/2009	Credit Card							
\$1,465.00	7/17/2010	Credit Card							

- 1. Click in the section heading labeled "Payments Made" on the print, and type a heading as desired.
- Verify the Suppress Payments checkbox, located to the right of the Payments Made section of the print, is not checked.
   Note: When these checkboxes contain checks, the corresponding sections of the print will be suppressed (will not appear).
- 3. Click the down arrow to the right of the first field under the Payments Made section of the print and select a field to appear or select **None** (*see Table 3.2 for information about these options*).
- 4. Repeat for other fields in the section.

#### **Table 3.2: Payments Fields**

Field	Description
Payment	Prints the payment amount for the event.
Pmt Date	Prints the date of each payment made for the event.
Pmt Method	Prints the method of each payment.
Pmt Card Type	Prints the credit card type, if applicable, used for each payment.

Field	Description
Pmt Card Number (Hidden)	Prints the last four digits of the credit card, if applicable, used for each payment.
Pmt Card Holder	Prints the name of the credit card holder, if applicable, for each payment.
Pmt Expires	Prints the expiration date of the credit card.
Pmt Approval	Prints the authorization details from the credit card company, if applicable.
Pmt Rev Code	Prints an optional revenue code you may have entered for each payment (often used for in-house tracking).
Pmt Acct Code	Prints an optional account code you may have entered for each payment (often used for in-house tracking or for interfaces with third-party accounting packages).
Pmt Check #	Prints the check number, if the payment type is Check.
Pmt Check Date	Prints the date the check was written, if the payment type is Check.
Pmt Category	Prints the payment category, e.g, Scheduled Payment.
None	Choose this option if you do not want anything to appear in one of these fields on the print.

Table 3.2: Payments Fields

#### **Remember This:**

In this unit, you have learned a few very important concepts about modifying the financial section of an event print. Here are some things you might want to jot down in the **Table of Things I Want to Remember** on the last page of this book:

- You can select which financial information appears on your various prints (Page 3.1).
- You can show a financial breakdown on your prints based on menu item type (Page 3.4).
- You can suppress the billing information altogether, so that it does not appear on a print (Page 3.4).
- You can show the specific percentages of your tax and service charge on your prints (Page 3.5).
- You can show discounts and miscellaneous charges on your prints (Page 3.6).
- You can show payments made or future deposits due on your prints (Page 3.6).



# Creating Custom Event Prints

## Unit 4: Completing Your Custom Print

#### **Objectives:**

#### Upon completing this unit, you will be able to:

- Enter terms and conditions and signature lines in your Bottom Notes section.
- Customize the footer of your print.
- Select a language translation for your print.
- *Identify the print type for the program.*
- Access the Miscellaneous Print Designer.

#### **Customizing the Bottom Notes Section**

#### See Image 4.1 Concept:

As discussed in Unit 1 of this book, the "Top Notes" section of your prints allows you to type any free-flowing text, format the text any way you want, and even pepper the text with merge fields that will automatically pull information from a specific event when you generate the print. The "Bottom Notes" section can also be customized. While Bottom Notes can contain any text you want, this section is most often used to outline your company's terms and conditions and provide signature lines.

**Image 4.1: Editing Bottom Notes** 

Paste Cut D Copy D Undo	Arial	· 10 · A· ▲· 8=		Fields Tools + Insert +	Scratch Pad		
Clipboard	F	Format		Tools			
	wen as any terms and cond	nuono on any contract au	dendum s wn	ich i may	sign.		
Client:	weir als any terms and cond		D	ate:	sign.	2	Ш
Client: Sales Rep:			D	ate:	sign.	2	III
Client: Sales Rep:			D	ate:	sign.	-7	E .

1. Click the **Edit Bottom Notes** button, located on the lower left-hand side of the Print Designer.

Result: The Bottom Notes window displays.

- 2. Type into the text box as desired, optionally inserting merge fields as described on Page 1.9 of this booklet.
- 3. Format text using the format toolbar located at the top of the notes window (see Table 1.2 in Unit 1 for more information).
- 4. **[Optional]** Add signature lines by typing a label for the line (such as "Customer Signature") and then typing several underscore characters ("\_").

#### Editing the Page Footer of a Print

#### See Image 4.2 Concept:

Caterease gives you the opportunity to insert a unique footer onto your event prints and to change the material at any time. You might want to add more information to this footer, such as your company's address, phone number, website, etc. This text can be entered and formatted in the Page Footer section of the Print Designer.

#### Image 4.2: Editing the Page Footer



- 1. Click the **Edit Footer** button (lower left-hand side of the Print Designer). *Result: The Footer window displays.*
- 2. Type into text box as desired, optionally inserting merge fields as described on Page 1.9 of this booklet.
- 3. Format text using the Format toolbar located at the top of the notes window. (*See Table 1.2 in Unit 1 for more information.*)

#### **Selecting a Language Translation**

See Image 4.3 Concept:

You can translate your various Caterease event prints into any of several different languages, with you controlling the terminology of each language. You can even translate a print into "English," which means that you can translate labels and other terms on the print to your own terminology. For example, if a Caterease print identifies a client's name as "Client/Organization," and you would rather use the term "Customer" or "Guest," you can translate the label yourself.

T -E -E 🔙 🗶	Print Ty	pe •	Tools	- P	review						😿 Sett	ings 🔻
nvoice	Client/C	rgani	zation		Event Da	ate	Teleph	ione	Fax		Event #	
ontract	Address						Bookin	ng Contact	Site Con	tact	Guests	
Contract - Images	Party Na	me			Sales Re	р	Theme	•	Categor	y		
Inten Detail	E dit To	p Note	es 🔻 🔽	Suppress						E S	how Allergy Al	erts
ontract with Staffing						Site Loo	cations					E
ontract - (Narrative)	Site Name Site Address None											
Dual Column Contract Custom Print Contrat en Francais Offsite Contract- E00027 Class Example		Venue										E
	Descript	ion	Туре	Start	End	Se	rving	None	Room		Setup Style	
		Food/Service Items										
	Format Name					None		None	Price	Qty	Total	
						I. Same		1	Group By	Non	e	
	Ingredients											
		ingredients										
	Staffing Requirements											
	Comments									E		
	Notes									E		
	Billing In	forma	ation									
	Subtotal			Paid			Pay Met	thod	Card Nur		mber (Hidden)	V
	Tax			Balance			Card Ty	pe	Ex	pires		
	Service	harg	e	None			Card Ho	older	None			V
	Total Va	lue		None			Signatu	re	N	one Er	nglish	E
						Paymen	ts Made			Sp	ench	
	Paymen	t	Pmt Date	Pmt	Method	None		None	None	G	erman	
				-						Ita	alian	22

**Image 4.3: Translating Event Prints** 

#### Using Language Translation

- 1. Click the down arrow labeled **Translate To** at the bottom right of the Print Designer.
- Select a foreign language for this print, or choose English to apply alternative terms and labels to the print (see Customizing Languages, below).
   Result: Nothing changes in Print Designer, but when you generate this print, all headings for all fields in the print ("Client," "Event Date," "Sales Rep") will be translated to terms you can define.

#### See Image 4.4 Customizing Languages

- 1. Close your Print Designer, if it is open.
- 2. Click the Administration ribbon tab, and then choose Options > Language Translations.
- 3. Click in any language column and enter a translation for the corresponding default term in the **Root** column.

*Note:* You can use the column labeled *English* to enter alternatives to the Root captions. For example, if you would prefer your prints use the term "Company Name" instead of the default "Client Organization," you can enter that alternative in the *English* column.

4. Repeat the above steps as desired.

				100	ois • 🕴 🧑 Setting	s*   421 : 🎹
Root	English	Spanish	French	German	Italian	Portuguese
Account #	Account #	# de cuenta	Compte #	Kontozahl	Número da conta	Número da conta
Acct Code	Acct Code	Clave de cuenta	Code de compte	Kontocode	Código da conta	Código da conta
Act	Act	Acto				
Act Guests	Act Guests	Invitados reales	Couverts servis	eigentliche Gäste	Convidados present	Convidados preser
Address	City, St Zip	Dirección	Adresse	Adresse	Endereço	Endereço
Adjusted	Adjusted	la Adjusted			Ajustado	Ajustado
Agreed	Agreed	la Agreed			Acordado	Acordado
Approval	Approval	Aprobación	Approuve	Zustimmung	Aprovação	Aprovação
Arrival	Arrival	Llegada	Arrivée	Ankunft	Chegada	Chegada
at a flat rate of	at a flat rate of	En una tarifa uniforn				
at an hourly rate o	at an hourly rate of	En una tarifa horaria				
Balance	Balance	Balance	Balance	balancieren	equilibrio	
Banquet Room	Banquet Room	Sala de banquetes	Salle	Bankettzimmer	Sala de banquete	Sala de banquete
Beverage	Beverage	Bebida	Boisson	Getränk	Bebidas	Bebidas
Billing Address	Billing Address	Dirección facturada	Adresse a facturer	Adresse berechnet	Endereço de cobrai	Endereço de cobr
Billing Client	Billing Client	Cliente facturado	Client a facturer	Kunde berechnet	Cliente de cobrança	Cliente de cobran
Blocked	Blocked	Bloqueado			Bloqueado	Bloqueado
Booked	Booked	Reservar on	Reserve le	Reserviert auf	Reservado	Reservado
Booking Contact	Booking Contact	Responsable de la r	reserve par	zuverlässig für Rese	Contato de reserva	Contato de reserva
Card Holder	Card Holder	Titular de tarjeta	Titulaire	Kartehalter	Nome do cartão	Nome do cartão
Card Number	Card Number	Número de tarjeta	Numero	Kartenummer	Número do cartão	Número do cartão
Card Type	Card Type	Tipo de la tarjeta	Type de carte	Karteart	Tipo de cartão	Tipo de cartão
Category	Location	Categoría	Categorie	Kategorie	Categoria	Categoria
City	City	Ciudad	Ville	Stadt	Cidade	Cidade
Client/Organizatio	Client/Organization	Cliente / organizacio	Client/Organisation	Kunde/Firma	Cliente/Organizaçã	Cliente/Organizaç

#### Image 4.4: Customizing Language Translations

#### Identifying the Print Type for the Program

#### See Image 4.5 Concept:

You may want Caterease to automatically keep track of the dates on which you generate your various event prints. For example, if you print a contract for a customer today, you might want Caterease to record the current date so later on you can find out exactly when that contract was sent. However, since Caterease lets you create all your own custom prints, it has no way of knowing which one you consider your "Contract," which one is your "Invoice," which one is your "BEO" (Banquet Event Order), etc.



**Tip:** Once you've identified the Print Type of each print, you should go into **Administration** > **Global Settings** and click the Managers tab to verify that the **Automatically Set Print Date** option is checked off. Therefore, if you want Caterease to keep track of the dates on which you generate your prints, you should identify those prints to the program. Basically, when you select a Print Type of "Contract" (or "BEO" or "Invoice"), you are telling the program, "Whenever I generate this print, mark today's date as the date I sent the Contract."

Flav					Sal	les / C	Catering Contract	
C Suppress Hea	der					Ec	dit Header	-
Client/Organizat	ion	Event Da	te Te	elephone	Fax		Event #	[
Address			B	ooking Contact	Site Con	tact	Guests	
Party Name	Theme	Sa	ales Rep	Categor	v		1	
E di Tan Makes	For the second s							
Edit Top Notes	Subt	iress				E Sho	w Allergy Ale	ins
			SITE LOCA	TION				
Site Name Site Address					None			
	BANQUET ROOMS							
Setup Style 1	Vone St	art Bar	Servi	ng End	Room		Setup Style	
	FOOD/SERVICE ITEMS							
Format Description None Non				None	Price Oby Total			
Pormac Descrip	buon		None	None	Conver Dec	Neg	TOLAI	
Group By None								
Ingredients								
Event Staffing							3	
COMMENTS							[	
	EVENT NOTES							1
Billing Informatio	n							
Subtotal	Pai	d	Pay	Method	C	ard Num	ber	T
Tax	Bal	ance	Ca	rd Type	N	one		I
Service Charge	No	ne	Ca	rd Holder	Ex	pires		
Total Value	No	ne	Sig	inature	N	one		1
		p.	AVMENTS	MADE				1
Payment F	mt Date	Pmt Method	None	None	Neg		None	
- ayment P		r me method	None	INOTE	INONE		none	
Edit Bottom Notes							-	
E dit Bottom Notes	s supp	1633						
Edit Bottom Note:	Supp	oress 🔲 Time 8	Page Cou	ints	Translate T	o Con	tract	
	Suppress Hea Client/Organizat Address Party Name Edit Top Notes Site Name Setup Style Format Descrip Billing Informatic Subtotal Tax Service Charge Total Value Payment P	Suppress Header         Client/Organization         Address         Party Name         Edit Top Notes         Site Name         Site Name         Setup Style       None         State Name         Billing Information         Subtotal       Pail         Tax       Ball         Service Charge       No         Total Value       No         Payment       Pmt Date	Suppress Header         Client/Organization         Address         Party Name         Theme         Edit Top Notes         Site Name         Site Name         Site Name         Setup Style         None         Start         Bar         Format         Description         Subtotal         Paid         Tax         Service Charge         None         Total Value         Payment         Pmt Date         Pmt Method	Suppress Header         Client/Organization         Address         Party Name         Theme         Site Name         Site Name         Stetup Style         None         Stetup Style         None         Stetup Style         Secup Style         None         Start         Bar         Secup Style         None         Start         COMMER         Event Staft         Balance         Case         Service Charge         None         Case         Payment         Pmt Date         Pmt Method	Suppress Header         Client/Organization       Event Date         Address       Booking Contact         Party Name       Theme         Edit Top Notes       Instruction         Site Name       Site Address         BANQUET ROOMS       Setup Style         None       Start         Bar       Serving         Format       Description         None       None         Ingredients       Event Staffing         COMMENTS       EVENT NOTES         Billing Information       Subtotal         Subtotal       Paid         Tax       Balance         Card Type         Service Charge       None         Total Value       None         Payment       Pmt Method	Satistical and the second s	Soles / Contering + events         Suppress Header         Example Suppress Header         Client/Organization         Address         Barby Name         Theme         Sales Rep         Category         Edit Top Notes         Ste Address         None         Ste Address         Ste Address         None         Ste Address         None         BanQUET ROOMS         Setup Style         None         None         None         None         None         None         None         None         Subtotal         Paid         Subtotal         Paid         Subtotal         Paid         Subtotal         Paid         Signature         None      <	Sales / Catering Contract         Suppress Header         Edit Header         Edit Header         Client/Organization         Event #       Booking Contact       Site Contact       Guests         Party Name       Theme       Sales Rep       Category         Edit Top Notes       © Suppress       © Show Allergy Ale         Stite LOCATION         Site Address       None         BANQUET ROOMS         Setup Style       None       Setup Style         FOOD/SERVICE ITEMS         Format       Description       None       None       Price       Qty       Total         Group By       None         Lingredients         Event Staffing         COMMENTS         Billing Information         Subtotal       Paid       Pay Method       Card Number         Tax       Balance       Card Type       None         Subtotal       Paid       Pay Method       Card Number         Tax       Balance       Card Type       None

Image 4.5: Selecting Print Type

- 1. Click the title of the print you want to identify on the left-hand side of the Print Designer screen.
- 2. Click the down arrow next to **Print Type** at the bottom right-hand side of your Print Designer.

**Result:** A drop-down list of options appears.

3. Choose the appropriate print type for this print: "Contract," "Invoice," "BEO," or "None," if this print is none of the above.

#### **Copying an Existing Print**

#### Concept:

Imagine you spend a great deal of time creating your perfect custom contract, showing just the information you need the customer to see. Then you remember you need to create the same print for your customers who have off-premise parties, rather than parties in your banquet rooms. And perhaps you even need a unique print for your wed-ding receptions, with slightly different terms and conditions. Well, rather than having to re-create the same print three times, with slight modifications, you can copy a print (*Professional version only*) and then quickly make the necessary changes.

- Click your right mouse button over any print title on the left-hand side of your Print Designer screen.
   *Result:* A pop-up menu appears.
- 2. Choose **Copy Print**. *Result:* A confirmation message appears.
- 3. Click **Yes** to confirm. **Result:** A new print — an exact duplicate of the original — is added, with your cursor blinking in the title.
- 4. Type a title for your new print, and then press [Enter].
- 5. Edit the new print as desired.

#### **Creating a Custom Invoice**

#### Concept:

The Invoice print in Caterease differs from other event prints, in that it has one layout that you can manipulate using the techniques described in this booklet. As a default, the Invoice only shows menu items that have a value — meaning they have both a price and a quantity in the event — although this is also under your control.

#### Adding an Invoice

- 1. Click the **Add Print** button 1. located at the top of the Print Designer window. *Result:* A *confirmation message displays*.
- 2. Click **Yes** to confirm your choice. *Result:* The Select Print Layout window displays.
- 3. Select Layout 1 under Invoices.
- Click OK. Result: A new print is added, and your cursor is blinking in the <u>Title field of the</u> new print.
- 5. Type a title for your new print. Note: This is the title that will appear in your Print drop-down menu (i.e., the title you will select to generate this print).
- 6. Press [Enter] when finished to save your changes.

#### Customizing the Invoice

#### Concept:

Most of the design features of the Invoice are the same as other prints discussed in this book. However, there are two unique options: First, you can decide whether you want the financial totals on the Invoice to be centered on the print or if you want separate Food, Beverage, Liquor, Equipment, Room, Labor, and Other charges to appear in boxes. Second, you can decide whether or not to include menu items without values (meaning they either have no prices or no quantities).

- Click either the Centered or Boxed radio button, located towards the middle, right-hand side of the Invoice in your Print Designer screen. Note: It is common, when using Boxed layout, to click the Suppress Details checkbox along the right-hand side of the print and suppress individual menu items, whereas these details are not typically suppressed in a Centered layout.
- [Optional] Click the Include Items without Values checkbox on the right-hand side of the Print Designer screen to have menu items with no values (either no prices or no quantities) appear on the Invoice.
   Note: When this checkbox is checked, these items will appear on the print; when the box is not checked, these items will not appear.
- 3. **[Optional]** Click the **Display Extended Tax Breakdown** checkbox on the lefthand side of the Print Designer screen to show a breakdown of each of your three custom tax rates separately.

#### **Using the Miscellaneous Prints Designer**

#### Concept:

The Miscellaneous Prints Designer allows you to redesign the tops of various prints, including the Billing Statement in Account Manager and all sub-prints in Event Manager.

#### Customizing Miscellaneous Prints (See Image 4.6)

1. Click the **Miscellaneous Print Designer** button from the **Setup** sidebar of your Caterease screen.

Result: The Miscellaneous Print Designer window displays.

- 2. Click the plus sign before any category to expand the list of prints in that category.
- 3. Select a print.
- 4. Modify the print using the Miscellaneous Print Designer tools for suppressing sections, rearranging fields, inserting merge fields, formatting text, etc., as described in previous sections of this manual.

×	Tools • Preview			2	Settings -	
Account Manager Billing Statement Event Manager Event Checklist Deliveries				Billing Stat	ement	
Payments Deposits	Title Billing Statemen	t		🔲 Suppress Header	Edit Header	
Recipes	Client/Organization		Telephone	Fax		
Details	Address		Sales Rep	Category		
	Reference	erence Reference Reference Reference		Reference	ice 🛛	
Production Sheet Event Costing Summary Vendor List Event Timeline Scheduled Tables	Edit Bottom Notes	Suppress				

Image 4.6: Miscellaneous Print Designer

#### **Remember This:**

In this unit, you have learned a few very important concepts about customizing an event print. Here are some things you might want to jot down in the **Table of Things I Want to Remember** on the last page of this book:

- You can use the Bottom Notes section of your prints to include any text you want, including your company's terms and conditions and signature lines (Page 4.1).
- You can edit the page footer of your prints to show your company address information, phone number, etc. (Page 4.2).
- You can translate a print into a different language, including translating it to fit your unique company terminology (Page 4.2).
- When Caterease keeps track of the dates you generate your prints, you need to tell the program which print is which (Page 4.4).
- You can add custom Invoices to the program, as well (Page 4.6).
- You can modify a variety of custom prints using the Miscellaneous Print Designer (Page 4.7).

Appendix A Print Layout Samples

# Appendix A

Contract Print Layout Samples Shown: Layout 1 Layout 2 Layout 3 Layout 4 Layout 5 Layout 6

#### Customer has shellfish allergy.

Client/Organization	Event Date	Telephone	Fax	Event #
Acoustics Associates	5/28/2012 (Mon)	(612) 544-8901	(612) 544-2928	E00257
Address		Booking Contact	Site Contact	Guests
1661 Estero Blvd		Rochelle Grover	Rochelle Grover	25 (Act)

Description	Start	End	Serving	Room	Setup Style
Lunch Buffet	01:00 pm	04:00 pm	02:00 pm	Sun	Banquet
Food/Service Items Food/Service Items					Qty
Chef's Table Buffet includes: Italian mostacc iour, tossed salad, potat	ioli, baked chicken, to salad, cole slaw, r	sage dressing olls and butte	, whipped potatoes a dessert_coffee_tea	nd gravy, vegetable or milk	du
Soft Drinks per glass			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		25
Soft Drinks per glass Chocolate Cake Comments					25 25
Soft Drinks per glass Chocolate Cake <u>Comments</u>					25 25

#### Notes

Each table will have a flower arrangement.





Client/Organization	Acoustics Associates	Event Date	5/28/2012 (Mon)	
Party Name	Company Lunch	Event #	E00257	
Address	1661 Estero Blvd	Guests	25 (Act)	
Telephone	(612) 544-8901	Booking Contact	Rochelle Grover	
Fax	(612) 544-2928	Site Contact	Rochelle Grover	
Sales Rep	John Smith	Theme	Social	

#### ANY CHANGES TO GUARANTEED GUEST COUNT MUST BE MADE NO LATER THAN 72 HOURS BEFORE EVENT DATE. CANCELLATION CHARGES MAY APPLY.

				Venue			
Description	Туре	Start	End	Serving	Room		Setup Style
Lunch Buffet	10.000 D	01:00 pm	04:00 pm	02:00 pm	Sun		Banquet
			Food/	Service Items		1000	
Food/Service Ite	ms			NGELENNE VELLENNEN MEDER	Price	Qty	Total
Chef's Table	Buffet				\$10.95	25	\$273.75
Soft Drinks					\$1.95	25	\$48.75
			C	omments			

Client will arrive an hour early to help set-up decoration.

Notes

Each table will have a flower arrangement.



Subtotal	\$447.50 Paid	\$500.00 Pay Metho	d Credit Card	Card Number *0697	
Tax	\$31.32 Balance	\$50.42 Card Type		Expires	
Service Charge	\$71.60	Card Holde	r		
Total Value	\$550.42	Signature			

I have read the above contract and agree to the terms and conditions as well as any terms and conditions on any contract addendum's which I may sign.

Client: \_\_\_\_\_ Da
Sales Rep: \_\_\_\_\_ Da

Date:\_\_\_\_\_

Date:\_\_\_\_

6/14/2012 - 11:06:51 AM

P On-Site Chef Required

Page 1 Of 1



#### Customer has shellfish allergy.

Client/Organization	Event Date	Telephone	Fax	Event #
Acoustics Associates	5/28/2012 (Mon)	(612) 544-8901	(612) 544-2928	E00257
Address	12)	Booking Contact	Site Contact	Guests
1661 Estero Blvd		Rochetle Grover	Rochelle Grover	25 (Act)

		Ver	nue & Times	0.000 0.000		
Description	Start	Serving	End	Setup Style	Room	
Lunch Buffet	01:00 pm	02:00 pm	04:00 pm	Banquet	Sun	
	Food Items			Beverage/Liquor Items		
Food/Service Items		Qty	Food/Service Items			Qty
Chef's Table Buffet		25	Soft Drinks			25
Chocolate Cake		25				Per an
		C	comments			



Client will arrive an hour early to help set-up decoration.

Notes

Each table will have a flower arrangement.



# Flaveurs

#### Sales / Catering Contract

Client/Organization	Event Date	Telephone	Fax	Event #
Acoustics Associates	5/28/2012 (Mor	(612) 544-8901	(612) 544-2928	E00257
Address		Booking Contact	Site Contact	Guests
1661 Estero Blvd		Rochelle Grover	Rochelle Grover	25 (Act)

PRICING BASED ON MINIMUM GUARANTEED GUEST COUNT OF 22. ESTIMATED COST PER GUEST: \$23.19. ANY CHANGES TO GUARANTEED GUEST COUNT MUST BE MADE NO LATER THAN 72 HOURS BEFORE EVENT DATE. CANCELLATION CHARGES MAY APPLY.

		BANQ	UET ROOM	S			
Setup Style	Start	Bar	Serving	End	Room		Setup Style
Banquet	01:00 pm	01:30 pm	02:00 pm	04:00 pm	Sun		Banquet
		FOOD/SI	ERVICE ITE	MS			
Food/Service Items					Price	Qty	Total
Chef's Table Buffet includes: Italian mostac and gravy, vegetable du butter, dessert, coffee, i	P cioli, baked chicken, u jour, tossed salad, tea or milk	sage dressin potato salad,	g, whipped po cole slaw, roi	otatoes Ils and	\$10.95	25	\$273.73
Soft Drinks per glass					\$1.95	25	\$48.75
Chocolate Cake					\$5.95	25	\$148.75
		co	MMENTS				



Client will arrive an hour early to help set-up decoration.

Subtotal	\$596.25 Paid	\$500.00	Pay Method	Credit Card	Card Number	*0697
Tax	\$41.74 Balance	\$233.39	Card Type			
Service Charge	\$95.40		Card Holder		Expires	
Total Value	\$733.39		Signature			

A <u>\$200.00</u> cancellation fee will be incurred for any cancellation within <u>7 days</u> of event. A <u>\$100.00</u> fee will be incurred for any additional setup on the day of the event. I have read the above contract and agree to the terms and conditions as well as any terms and conditions on any contract addendum's which I may sign.

Client:	Date:
Sales Rep:	Date:

P On-Site Chef Required



#### Customer has shellfish allergy.

Client/Organization Event Date		Telephone	Fax	Event #
Acoustics Associates 5/28/2012 (Mo		(612) 544-8901	(612) 544-2928	E00257
Address		Booking Contact	Site Contact	Guests
1661 Estero Blvd		Rochelle Grover	Rochelle Grover	25 (Act)

#### ANY CHANGES TO GUARANTEED GUEST COUNT MUST BE MADE NO LATER THAN 72 HOURS BEFORE EVENT DATE. CANCELLATION CHARGES MAY APPLY.

	Food Items			1	Bever	age & Liq	uor Items		
Food/Service Items	Price	Qty	Total	Food/Servic	e Items	545 P 6	Price	Qty	Total
Chef's Table Buffet	\$10.95	25	\$273.75	Soft Drinks	F.)		\$1.95	25	\$48.75
	Comments					Venue	4		100 - 100
		5.0.000 0000 A.	and a second	Room	Setup Style	Туре		Start	End
Client will arrive an hour	early to help set	t-up dec	oration.	Sun	Banquet	129.04		01:00 pr	n 04:00 pm

Notes

Each table will have a flower arrangement.



Subtotal	\$447.50 Paid	\$500.00	Pay Method	Credit Card	Card Number	*0697
Tax (7%)	\$31.32 Balance	\$50.42	Card Type		Expires	
Serv Chg (16%	\$71.60		Card Holder			
Total Value	\$550.42		Signature			

A \$200.00 cancellation fee will be incurred for any cancellation within 7 days of event. A \$100.00 fee will be incurred for any additional setup on the day of the event. I have read the above contract and agree to the terms and conditions as well as any terms and conditions on any contract addendum's which I may sign.

~			
	1.00 10		
	I G T		
<u> </u>	1001	16	

10.00			
0	ato:		
U	ale.		

Sales Rep:

Date:



#### Customer has shellfish allergy.

Client/Organization         Event Date           Acoustics Associates         5/28/2012 (Mon)		Telephone	Fax	Event #
		(612) 544-8901	(612) 544-2928	E00257
Address		Booking Contact	Site Contact	Guests
1661 Estero Blvd		Rochetle Grover	Rochelle Grover	25 (Act)

#### ANY CHANGES TO GUARANTEED GUEST COUNT MUST BE MADE NO LATER THAN 72 HOURS BEFORE EVENT DATE. CANCELLATION CHARGES MAY APPLY.

	Food Items				Bever	age & Liqu	or Items		
Food/Service Items	Price	Qty	Total	Food/Servi	ce Items	56 F 6	Price	Qty	Total
Chef's Table Buffet	\$10.95	25	\$273.75	Soft Drinks S		\$1.95	5 25	\$48.75	
	Comments					Venue			400 M
		5.0.000 0000 A.	and a second	Room	Setup Style	Туре	S	start	End
Client will arrive an hour early to help set-up decoration.		Sun	Banquet	25/34	0	1:00 pn	n 04:00 pm		

Notes

#### Each table will have a flower arrangement.



#### Terms & Conditions

A <u>\$200.00</u> cancellation fee will be incurred for any cancellation within <u>7 days</u> of event. A <u>\$100.00</u> fee will be incurred for any additional setup on the day of the event. I have read the above contract and agree to the terms and conditions as well as any terms and conditions on any contract addendum's which I may sign.

#### Financial Information

Subtotal	\$447.50 Paid	\$500.00
Tax (7%)	\$31.32 Balance	\$50.42
Serv Chg (16%)	\$71.60	
Total Value	\$550.42	

Client:

Sales Rep:

Date:

Date:



# Appendix B Available Merge Fields

### Appendix B

#### **Account Merge Fields**

Field	Description
Client/Organization	Merges in the name of customer holding the currently selected event.
Address	Merges in that customer's street address.
Address 2	Merges in additional address information, such as Suite #, Building #, etc.
City, St/Prov Postal	Merges in these three details in this order. This field was designed to eliminate the need to select each field separately when they are commonly used in com- bination (in letters and such).
Telephone	Merges in the customer's telephone number.
Fax	Merges in the customer's fax number.
Reference	Merges in the reference that is attached to the customer. <b>Note:</b> This is differ- ent from the reference that is attached to the event; this reference is entered in the account details, and indicates how this customer originally heard of your company.
Sales Rep	Merges in the name of the sales representative who is <b>a</b> ttached to this customer. See note under Reference, above.
Sales Rep Telephone	Merges in the sales rep's telephone number.
Sales Rep Cellular	Merges in the sales rep's cellular number.
Sales Rep Email	Merges in the sales rep's e-mail address.
Category	Merges in the category that is attached to this customer. See note under Reference, above.
Description	Merges in this customer's description, e.g, Association Member, VIP, Repeat Client, etc. This is a quick-pick list that is under your control, used for tracking your customers.
Email	Merges in the customer's e-mail address; <b>Note:</b> This is the address attached to the customer itself, not to a particular contact person.
Cellular	Merges in the cell phone number that is on file for this customer.
Account #	Merges in the account number automatically assigned to this customer by the program. <b>Note:</b> You can establish a unique prefix for these numbers up to three-characters long (through <b>Setup &gt; Settings&gt; Global Settings</b> ).
Account ID #	Merges in this customer's Account ID #. This is a field you can customize.

#### **Account Merge Fields**

Field	Description
Group	Merges in the group of this customer. This is a quick-pick list you can custom- ize, and is used to group related customers together.
Loyalty #	Merges in the customer's loyalty number. This is a field you can customize.

#### **Event Merge Fields**

Field	Description
Event Date (Long)	Merges in the date the event is being held including day, in the format "Tues- day, June 12, 2012."
Event Date (Short)	Merges in the date the event is being held, in the format "June 12, 2012."
Event Date	Merges in the date the event is being held, in the format "6/12/2012."
Event Weekday	Merges in the full name of the day of the week that the event takes place, in the format "Sunday," "Monday," etc.
Event Weekday (Abbr)	Merges in the first three letters of the day of the week that the event takes place, in the format "Sun," "Mon," etc.
Event Month	Merges in the full month name that the event takes place, in the format "August," "September," etc.
Event Month (Abbr)	Merges in the first three letters of the month that the event takes place, in the format "Aug," "Sep," etc.
Event Status	Merges in the status of the event.
Planned Guests	Merges in the planned guest count of the event.
Actual Guests	Merges in the actual guest count of the event.
Guaranteed Guests	Merges in the guaranteed guest count of the event.
Party Name	This field is blank, by default, but can be set to merge in the party name of the event.
Booking Contact	Merges in the first name and last name of the booking contact of the event.
Booking Contact Title	Merges in the title of the booking contact of the event; e.g., "Owner," "General Manager," etc.
Booking Contact Salutation	Merges in the salutation of the booking contact of the event; e.g., "Tom," "Mr. Smith," "Mrs. Johnson," etc. <i>Note:</i> Salutations are generally created to come at the beginning of a merge letter, between the word "Dear" and the comma.
Booking Contact Telephone	Merges in the specific telephone number belonging to the booking contact of the event. <i>Note:</i> This will typically differ from the general phone number belonging to the customer.

Field	Description
Booking Contact Fax	Merges in the specific fax number belonging to the booking contact of the event. See note under Booking Contact Salutation, above.
Booking Contact Cellular	Merges in the specific cellular phone number belonging to the booking con- tact of the event. See note under Booking Contact Salutation, above.
Booking Contact Email	Merges in the specific e-mail address belonging to the booking contact of the event. See note under Booking Contact Salutation, above.
Booking Contact Address	Merges in the booking contact's street address.
Booking Contact City, St/Prov Postal	Merges in these three details in this order: city, state/province, ZIP code.
Site Contact	Merges in the first name and last name of the site contact of the event.
Site Contact Title	Merges in the title of the site contact of the event; e.g., "Owner," "General Manager," etc.
Site Contact Saluta- tion	Merges in the salutation of the site contact of the event; e.g., "Tom," "Mr. Smith," "Mrs. Johnson," etc. <i>Note:</i> Salutations are generally created to come at the beginning of a merge letter, between the word "Dear" and the comma.
Site Contact Tele- phone	Merges in the specific telephone number belonging to the site contact of the event. <b>Note:</b> This will likely be different from the general phone number belonging to the customer.
Site Contact Fax	Merges in the specific fax number belonging to the site contact of the event; See note under Site Contact Salutation, above.
Site Contact Email	Merges in the specific e-mail address belonging to the site contact of the event. See note under Site Contact Salutation, above.
Sales Representative	Merges in the sales representative of the event.
Event Category	Merges in the category of the event, which is a quick-pick list that can be cus- tomized to track your events. <i>Note: This field can be renamed to be anything</i> <i>you want.</i>
Event Theme	Merges in the theme of the event, e.g., wedding, birthday, retirement, etc.
Event Reference	Merges in the reference for the event. <i>Note: This field can be renamed to any thing you want.</i>
Event Pay Method	Merges in the pay method of the event, as entered on the <i>Miscellaneous</i> tab in Event Manager. <b>Note:</b> This is the general pay method of the specific event, you're working in, not the pay method of an individual payment.
Event Number	Merges in the event number automatically assigned to this event by the pro- gram. <b>Note:</b> You can establish a unique prefix for these numbers up to three- characters long (through <b>Setup &gt; Settings &gt; Global Settings</b> ).
Event Credit Card Number	Merges the credit card number (encrypted), displaying the last four digits of the card.

#### **Event Merge Fields (Continued)**

Field	Description
Business Type	Merges in the business type, e.g, drop-off, full service, etc.
Operation	Merges in the name of the particular entity that is working the event. Useful for establishments that have DBA's.
PO Number	Merges in the purchase order number for the event, if you have entered one on the <i>Miscellaneous</i> tab in Event Manager.
Folio Number	Merges in the folio number for the event, if you have entered one on the <i>Miscellaneous</i> tab in Event Manager. <i>Note: This field is not usually displayed on your screen by default, but you can add it.</i>
Billing Client	If you have entered alternative details in the Optional Billing Information tool in Event Manager, this field will merge in that billing client's name; if you have not, this field will merge in the name of the customer holding the event.
Billing Address	If you have entered alternative details in the Optional Billing Information tool in Event Manager, this field will merge in that billing client's address. If you have not entered alternative details, this field will merge in the address of the customer holding the event.
Billing City	If you have entered alternative details in the Optional Billing Information tool in Event Manager, this field will merge in that billing client's city. If you have not entered alternative details, this field will merge in the city of the customer holding the event.
Billing St/Prov	If you have entered alternative details in the Optional Billing Information tool in Event Manager, this field will merge in that billing client's state or province. If you have not entered alternative details, this field will merge in the state or province of the customer holding the event.
Billing Postal	If you have entered alternative details in the Optional Billing Information tool in Event Manager, this field will merge in that billing client's postal/zip code. If you have not entered alternative details, this field will merge in the postal/ZIP code of the customer holding the event.
Booked Date	Merges in the date on which this event was originally entered into Caterease; this date is automatically assigned by the program, but you may edit it.
Booked Date For- matted	Merges in the date the event is being held including day, in the format "Friday, June 15, 2012."
Revised Date	Merges in the date on which this event was last revised Caterease. Although this date is automatically assigned by the program, you may edit it.
Revised Date/Time	Merges in the date and timestamp on which this event was last revised by Caterease.
Members	Merges in the members guest count of the event. <i>Note:</i> You may rename this field.
Non-Members	Merges in the non-members guest count of the event. <i>Note:</i> You may rename this field.

#### **Event Merge Fields (Continued)**

Field	Description
Loyalty #	Merges in the customer's loyalty number. Note: You may rename this field.
Event Notes (Unfor- matted)	Merges in any free-form event notes that were added.
Allergy Notes (Unfor- matted)	Merges in any free-form notes that were added to the Allergy Information section.

#### **Event Merge Fields (Continued)**

#### Sub-Event Merge Fields\*

Field	Description
Description	Merges in the description of the event's sub-event; e.g., "Dinner Buffet," "Meeting," "Breakfast," etc.
Туре	Merges in the type of event; e.g., "Off Premise" or "On Premise."
Time - Start	Merges in the start time of the event's sub-event.
Time - End	Merges in the end time of the event's sub-event.
Time - Delivery	Merges in the delivery time of the event's sub-event.
Time - Serving	Merges in the serving time of the event's sub-event. <i>Note:</i> You may rename this field.
Time - Bar	Merges in the bar time of the event's sub-event. <b>Note:</b> You may rename this field.
Time - Arrival	Merges in the arrival time of the event's sub-event. <i>Note:</i> You may rename this field.
Time - Departure	Merges in the departure time of the event's sub-event. <b>Note:</b> You may rename this field.
Time - NA	These two fields represent two extra time fields that you can make up your- self. They will each merge in the respective time information from the event's sub-event.
Time-Staff In	Merges in the arrival time of the staff (servers, bartenders, buss staff, host).
Time-Setup	Merges in the arrival time for setup
Time-Tear Down	Merges in the departure time of the event's tear-down.
Date	Merges in the date the sub-event is being held, in the format "6/15/2012."
Room	Merges in the name of the room of the event's sub-event.
Setup Style	Merges in the setup style of the event's sub-event.
Site Name	Merges in the name of the off-premise site location of the event's sub-event.

Field	Description
Site Address	Merges in the address of the off-premise site location of the event's sub- event.
Site City	Merges in the city of the off-premise site location of the event's sub-event.
Site St/Prov	Merges in the state or province of the off-premise site location of the event's sub-event.
Site Postal	Merges in the postal/ZIP code of the off-premise site location of the event's sub-event.
Site Telephone	Merges in the site telephone number.
Site Directions (Unformatted)	Merges in any free-form site direction notes associated with the event's sub- event.
Site Website	Merges in the website address of the off-premise site location of the event's sub-event.
Room Charge	Merges in the room charge of the event's sub-event.
Delivery Charge	Merges in the delivery charge of the event's sub-event.
Delivery Person	Merges in the name of the delivery person.
Delivery Notes (Unformatted)	Merges in any free-form notes associated with the event's sub-event.
Comments (Unfor- matted)	Merges in any free-form comments associated with the event's sub-event.
Planned Guests	Merges in the planned guest count of the event's sub-event.
Actual Guests	Merges in the actual guest count of the event's sub-event.
Guaranteed Guests	Merges in the guaranteed count of the event's sub-event.
Sub-Event Number	Merges in the sub-event number automatically assigned to this sub-event by the program. <b>Note:</b> You can establish a unique prefix for these numbers up to three-characters long (through <b>Administration &gt; Settings &gt; Global Set-</b> <i>tings</i> ).

#### Sub-Event Merge Fields\*

\* Note that all sub-event fields only merge in details of an event's first sub-event. If an event has multiple sub-events, these fields will not reflect that.

#### Field Description Subtotal Merges in the subtotal for the entire event. Gratuity Merges in the gratuity that may be applied to the event. Тах Merges in the total tax for the event. Service Charge Merges in the total service charge for the event. Total Merges in the total of the event, including tax and service charge. Paid Merges in the total amount paid today for the event. Balance Merges in the currently outstanding balance for the event. Cost Merges in the total cost (to you) of the event, and includes cumulative costs of menu items, as well as staffing and any additional cost adjustments you might have made. Profit Merges in the event's profit. Discount Merges in any discounts that were applied to the event. **Event Value** Merges in the total value of the event. Next Deposit Merges in the amount of the next deposit scheduled for the event. Note: Deposits are scheduled using the Deposits Due tool in Event Manager. Next Deposit Due Merges in the due date of the next deposit scheduled for the event (see note Date above). **Cost Per Guest** Merges in the cost per guest for the event. This is automatically calculated by the program based on either the subtotal or total of the event, depending on your program's Global Settings (Administration > Setup > Global Settings). **Cost Per Guest (from** Merges in the total cost per guest. Subtotal) **Cancel Charge** Merges in the cancellation charge for the event, as entered into the *Miscella*neous tab in Event Manager. **Cancel Date** Merges in the date on which this event was cancelled; this date is automatically assigned by the program, but can be changed by you. **Room Charge** Merges in the amount entered in the **Room Charge** field on the **Rooms** tab of the Sub-Event window. **Delivery Charge** Merges in the amount entered in the **Delivery Charge** field on the **Delivery** tab of the Sub-Event window. Food Subtotal Merges in the subtotal of food items. Beverage Subtotal Merges in the subtotal of beverages (excluding liquor). **Liquor Subtotal** Merges in the subtotal of liquor. Equipment Subtotal Merges in the subtotal of the equipment, e.g. podium, projector, microphone.

#### **Financial Merge Fields**

Field	Description
Labor Subtotal	Merges in the subtotal of the labor charge.
Room Subtotal	Merger in the subtotal of the room charge.
Other Subtotal	Merges in miscellaneous charges associated with the event.
Taxes-First	Merges in the first tax schedule.
Taxes-Second	Merges in the second tax schedule.
Taxes-Third	Merges in the third tax schedule.

#### Financial Merge Fields (Continued)

#### **Special Merge Fields**

Field	Description
Current Date (Long)	Merges in the current date including day, in the format "Friday, June 15, 2012."
Current Date	Merges in the current date, in the format "6/15/2012."
Current Date Format- ted	Merges in the current date, in the format "June 15, 2012."
Current Time	Merges in the current time, in the format "03:25 pm."
Tax Exempt	Merges in the words "Tax Exempt," if the event is tax exempt. If the event is not tax-exempt, this field remains blank.
Tax Exempt Number	Merges in the word "Number:" followed by the event's tax exempt number, if one exists; if no tax exempt number exists, it remains blank.
Current Date & Time	Inserts the current date, in the format "6/15/2012," followed by the time, in the format "3:25 pm."